
Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cyllid
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 7 Hydref 2015
Amser: 08.45

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Bethan Davies
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565 
SeneddCyllid@Cynulliad.Cymru

 

Yn ei gyfarfod ar 1 Hydref 2015, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.42, 
penderfynodd y Pwyllgor gwrdd yn breifat ar gyfer eitem 1 

1 Cyllideb ddrafft Comisiwn y Cynulliad ar gyfer 2016-17: Trafod yr 
adroddiad drafft
(08.45 - 09.00)  

Papur 1 – Adroddiad drafft

Cyhoeddus 

2 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon
(09.00)  

3 Papurau i’w nodi
(09.00)  

Llythyr i Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a Busnes y 
Llywodraeth

(Tudalennau 1 - 4) 
Nodyn o'r digwyddiad rhanddeiliaid ar y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru) ar 23 
Medi 2015

(Tudalennau 5 - 8) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



4 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Amcangyfrif o 
incwm a threuliau ar gyfer 2016-17: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1
(09.00 - 10.00) (Tudalennau 9 - 33) 

Nick Bennet, Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
Susan Hudson, Rheolwr Polisi a Chyfathrebu
David Meaden, Cyfrifydd Ariannol

Papur 2 - Amcangyfrif Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru ar gyfer y 
Flwyddyn Ariannol 2016-17
Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes canlynol:
(10.00)  

Eitem 6

6 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Amcangyfrif o 
incwm a threuliau ar gyfer 2016-17: Trafod y dystiolaeth
(10.00 - 10.15)  

Egwyl 
(10.15 - 10.30)

Cyhoeddus 

7 Y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 6
(10.30 - 11.15) (Tudalennau 34 - 64) 

Martin Warren, Cyfarwyddwr Cymru, Sefydliad Cyfrifwyr Siartredig Cymru a Lloegr
Jason Piper, Uwch Reolwr - Cyfraith Trethi a Busnes, Cymdeithas y Cyfrifwyr 
Ardystiedig Siartredig (ACCA)

Papur 3 - Ymateb Sefydliad Cyfrifwyr Siartredig Cymru a Lloegr i'r ymgynghoriad
Papur 4 - Ymateb Cymdeithas y Cyfrifwyr Ardystiedig Siartredig i'r ymgynghoriad



Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

8 Y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7
(11.15 - 12.15) (Tudalennau 65 - 74) 

Kay Powell, Cynghorwr Polisi, Cymdeithas y Cyfreithwyr
Richard Beech, Partner, Glamorgan Law LLP

Papur 5 - Ymateb Cymdeithas y Cyfreithwyr i'r ymgynghoriad 
Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

9 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes canlynol:
(12.15)  

Eitem 10 

10 Y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru): Trafod y dystiolaeth
(12.15 - 12.30)  



 

Jane Hutt AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Busnes y Llywodraeth 
Minister for Finance and Government Business 
 

 

 
Jocelyn Davies AM 
Chair  
Finance Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

 
 

 1 October 2015 
 
 
Dear Jocelyn, 
 
At the Finance Committee’s Stage 1 scrutiny of the Tax Collection and Management 
(Wales) Bill, I committed to provide further information in relation to:  
 

1) the circumstances where the section 14 direction-making power might be 
used, (including the rationale for providing that the power could not be 
exercised in relation to section 28 [accounts] and section 29 [tax statement], 
whilst there is no such restriction in relation to section 32 [accounting officer 
arrangements]); and, 

 
2) the current arrangements provided for in the Bill for appointing members of the 

Welsh Revenue Authority. 
 
Section 14: General directions 
 

Tax collection is a function of government: the revenues collected will go into the 
Welsh Consolidated Fund to support public services in Wales.  Welsh Ministers 
should rightly give strategic direction to the WRA on operational policy priorities (for 
example, the emphasis that the WRA should place on compliance and anti-
avoidance).    
 
The Assembly and Welsh public will, quite rightly, expect Welsh Ministers to be 
accountable for the strategic direction of the WRA.  They should and will expect the 
WRA to be accountable for the efficient and effective collection of devolved taxes 
within the strategic framework set by Welsh Ministers.  The Bill fully protects the 
confidentiality of taxpayer information and specific taxpayer situations from any 
involvement from Welsh Ministers, and ensures the operational independence of the 
WRA.  However, tax revenue is a fundamentally important element of the Welsh 
Government budget, and Welsh Ministers should have the ability, if absolutely 
required, to ensure that the WRA is indeed collecting devolved taxes efficiently and 
effectively. 
 
 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(4)-21-15 PTN1

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 3.1



For that reason, the Bill provides for a direction-making power. I would envisage a 
direction being given only rarely and in unusual circumstances.  This could be, for 
example, where there is a critical risk to the effective collection of Welsh tax receipts.  
It is difficult to provide a specific example, because the precise circumstances of tax 
collection difficulties in the future cannot be known.  
 
In considering our approach and this provision we have looked carefully at the 
arrangements elsewhere between Ministers and HMRC and Revenue Scotland. 
Different approaches have been adopted:  
 

 On the one hand, section 11 of the Commissioners for Revenue and Customs 
Act 2005 provides that in the exercise of their functions the Commissioners 
shall comply with any directions of a general nature given to them by the 
Treasury; 

 
 On the other hand, however, the Revenue Scotland and Tax Powers Act 2014 

provides that the Scottish Ministers must not give directions relating to, or 
otherwise seek to control, the exercise by Revenue Scotland of its functions 
(section 7). The Scottish Ministers may, however, give guidance to Revenue 
Scotland, to which Revenue Scotland must have regard (section 8). 

 
Having considered both arrangements, my preference is to remain consistent with 
the current Treasury/HMRC model, although with the introduction of a greater degree 
of transparency (because Welsh Ministers will be under a duty to publish directions 
unless they consider that this would prejudice the effective exercise of WRA’s 
functions). Whilst WRA should be operationally independent from Welsh Ministers in 
terms of how it deals with individual taxpayers, that has to be balanced against a 
need to ensure that the delivery of devolved tax operational policy is being carried 
out effectively. Section 14 allows this balance to be struck in a similar way to section 
11 of the Commissioners for Revenue and Customs Act 2005.  
 
What safeguards are in place? 
 
The Bill throughout provides extensive safeguards for taxpayers to ensure that they 
are treated fairly, impartially and in accordance with the law. There are two main 
points to recognise: 
 
Firstly, the power itself is limited to issuing directions of a general nature. Welsh 
Ministers will simply not be able to interfere in individual taxpayers’ affairs.  This is 
distinct from other bodies, for example Natural Resources Wales, where Ministers 
are able to issue directions of a specific nature. 
 
Secondly, Welsh Ministers must publish any directions given unless they consider 
that publication would prejudice the effective exercise of WRA’s functions. This goes 
further than the equivalent provision for HMRC, which does not require publication at 
all. This openness and possibility for public scrutiny will further ensure that the 
powers will not be inappropriately used. Such directions, issued publicly, would be 
subject to scrutiny by the Assembly. They would be subject to normal public law 
principles and could, potentially, be challenged in the courts.     

 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



It is also important to note that the rest of the Bill also contains significant and 
comprehensive safeguards for taxpayers. Any decisions by WRA will need to be 
reasonable and taken in accordance with the law. WRA’s decisions will be subject to 
extensive judicial scrutiny. For example: 
 

 Part 4, provides that when WRA uses its powers to require the public to 
provide information, or to access premises, it can only do so with the approval 
of the Tribunal. That is a very important safeguard which, in some respects, 
provides greater security for the public than is the case in Scotland and the 
UK; 
 

 Part 8 of the bill confers extensive rights on the public to review or appeal 
against a wide range of WRA decisions, including those that determine tax 
liability or liability to penalties.  

 
The Bill provides for comprehensive judicial oversight of WRA’s functions which will 
guard against inappropriate Ministerial interference in individual taxpayers’ affairs. 
  
I would also refer to sections 16 and 19 of the Bill which make it a criminal offence for 
anybody working in WRA (or organisations acting under delegation) to disclose 
protected taxpayers’ information, other than in tightly defined circumstances. Again, 
this is a significant safeguard against inappropriate interference in taxpayers’ affairs.  
 
The rationale for providing that directions cannot not be exercised in relation 
to sections 28 (accounts) and 29 (tax statement), but not 32 (accounting officer 
arrangements) 
 
Sections 28 and 29 already provide for specific directions in a particular context. 
Therefore Section 14, for clarity, stipulates that the general direction-making power 
cannot also apply. 
 
It was questioned whether section 32 should be outside the scope of the general 
direction making powers in section 14. Section 32 empowers Welsh Ministers to 
specify the responsibilities of WRA’s accounting officer (who will be the Chief 
Executive), and such responsibilities may include the signing of the WRA’s accounts, 
ensuring the propriety and regularity of the WRA’s finances, and the economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness with which WRA resources are used. As this provision 
relates to the personal responsibilities of the Chief Executive, as accounting officer, 
rather than the functions of the WRA, the direction making-power cannot be applied: 
that is, it is already outside the scope of the general direction-making powers in 
section 14.  As such, an exemption like that provided for sections 28 and 29 is not 
necessary. 
 
Section 3: Membership arrangements for the Welsh Revenue Authority 

 
The Bill provides that the Chair and other non-executive members of the WRA Board 
will be appointed by Welsh Ministers and that Welsh Ministers will appoint a Deputy 
Chair from among the non-executive members. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



Welsh Ministers will also appoint the first Chief Executive but subsequent chief 
executives will be appointed by WRA, although Welsh Ministers will have a role in 
approving the terms of appointment. WRA are responsible for the appointment of its 
staff (who will be civil servants), although again Welsh Ministers have an approval 
role in relation to the terms and conditions of those appointments.  WRA will 
nominate the executive members of the WRA Board.  
 
The non-executive members will be public appointments made in accordance with 
the Code of Practice for Ministerial Appointments to Public Bodies (the Nolan 
principles). Amongst other things, the Nolan principles state that no reappointment or 
extension is made without a satisfactory performance appraisal, evidence of which 
must be made available to the Commissioner for Public Appointments on request; 
and no individual will serve in any one post for more than ten years.  
 
The terms and conditions of non-executive members will be set by Welsh Ministers. 
Such appointments will be for the next Welsh Government to make, but I would not 
anticipate that the terms and conditions of appointments would depart significantly 
from the existing terms and conditions model used for non-executive appointments to 
the Welsh Government Board. These are generally for a fixed period of two years 
with the possibility of extension. The Seven Principles of Public Life would apply. 
 

  
 
Jane Hutt AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Busnes y Llywodraeth 
Minister for Finance and Government Business 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-21-15 PTN2

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Digwyddiad i Randdeiliaid 23 Medi 2015: Y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi 
(Cymru)  

Mae'r nodiadau hyn yn cyfleu'r adborth a gafwyd yn y digwyddiad i randdeiliaid, ond ni 
fwriedir iddynt fod yn rhestr gynhwysfawr o safbwyntiau pawb a oedd yn bresennol.

Diwylliant a rôl Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru (yr Awdurdod)

- Mae angen i'r Awdurdod ymwreiddio'r egwyddor bod pob busnes yng Nghymru yn 
cael triniaeth gyson;

- Mae Cyllid a Thollau EM yn anghyson o ran y ffordd y mae'n ymdrin â busnesau o 
wahanol faint (mae'n aml yn fwy llym gyda busnesau llai) a'i anallu i fynd ar drywydd 
busnesau amlwladol;

- Mae profiad busnesau bach o Gyllid a Thollau EM, a'r gwasanaeth a gânt, yn 
dibynnu'n llwyr ar y swyddog achos a neilltuir iddynt;

- Efallai y byddai'n well gan fusnesau ymdrin ag un corff ar gyfer yr holl drethi, gan 
gynnwys ardrethi busnes. Ai'r Awdurdod ddylai hwn fod?

- Dylai Siarter y Trethdalwyr fod yn dryloyw ac yn atebol, dylai fod dyhead i 
gyfathrebu â threthdalwyr (sy'n llai amlwg gyda Chyllid a Thollau EM). Dylai'r 
Awdurdod weithio gyda busnesau i ddatrys problemau pryd bynnag y bo modd;

- Dylai'r Awdurdod gael adain/adran yn cynnig cyngor a fyddai'n hygyrch i 
drethdalwyr;

- Mae angen cytuno ar y drefn o ymgysylltu â chwsmeriaid o fewn y contract gyda 
Chyllid a Thollau EM (os bydd swyddogaethau'r Awdurdod yn cael eu dirprwyo) neu 
mae perygl o etifeddu'r problemau presennol o ran gwasanaeth cwsmeriaid;

- Mae Cyllid a Thollau EM yn ymddangos yn rhy agos at Drysorlys EM, a dylai'r 
broses o ddatblygu polisi trethi yn Llywodraeth Cymru a'r broses o roi'r polisi hwnnw 
ar waith gan Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru gael eu gwahanu'n eglur. Bydd angen i Brif 
Weithredwr yr Awdurdod ddangos arweiniad cryf i sicrhau bod adran Cymru o Gyllid 
a Thollau EM (os bydd swyddogaethau'n cael eu dirprwyo iddi) yn mabwysiadu 
diwylliant gwahanol wrth gasglu trethi;

- Pryder y bydd Cyllid a Thollau EM yn pennu prosesau casglu heb fawr ddim 
gwybodaeth am Gymru, os o gwbl - angen cyfarwyddyd eglur gan Awdurdod Cyllid 
Cymru o ran sut y dylid rhedeg pethau, neu efallai bod angen swyddfa yng Nghymru?

Tudalen y pecyn 5

Eitem 3.2



2

- Dylai fod lle ar Fwrdd yr Awdurdod neu bwyllgor/is-bwyllgor i gynrychioli busnesau 
bach;

- Dylid ystyried presenoldeb aelodau'r Awdurdod yn ystod eu cyfnod yn y swydd, a 
rhoi gwybod am hyn yn y cyfrifon;

-  Symlrwydd yn allweddol. Er mwyn lleihau problemau trawsffiniol, ni all yr 
Awdurdod weithredu mewn modd rhy wahanol i drefniadau presennol Cyllid a 
Thollau EM, neu bydd hyn yn achosi dryswch/anawsterau i drethdalwyr ac unrhyw 
asiant sy'n gweithredu ar eu rhan;

- Mae angen iddo weithio i Gymru. Cyfle pwysig i adeiladu o'r newydd a chael 
pethau'n iawn y tro cyntaf - dysgu gwersi gan Gyllid a Thollau EM;

- Mae lefel y cyfrinachedd sy'n ofynnol y tu hwnt i'r rhan fwyaf o awdurdodau lleol ar 
hyn o bryd, ond mae Cyllid a Thollau EM wedi arfer â gweithio ar y lefel hon.

System drethi i Gymru 

- Angen polisïau treth yng Nghymru sy'n llwyddo'n well i sicrhau ymrwymiad;

- Manteision o ran ceisio symleiddio'r rheolau yng Nghymru;

- Dylai system drethi ar gyfer Cymru adlewyrchu'r system yn Lloegr er mwyn osgoi 
dryswch, oni bai bod manteision clir i wneud fel arall; 

- Dylid cynnal asesiad effaith treth ar unrhyw drethi arfaethedig y cynigir eu creu;

 Goruchwylio/Craffu ar Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru

- A yw'r Awdurdod yn dod o dan Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 
ynteu'r Ombwdsmon Seneddol?

- Mae Siarter y Trethdalwyr yn rhoi mesur i gymharu ag ef ond mae angen sefydlu 
llwybr clir i graffu ar yr Awdurdod hefyd. Pa fecanweithiau sydd ar waith i etholwyr 
wneud cwyn i'w Haelod Cynulliad? Sut mae Aelodau Cynulliad yn ymyrryd os oes 
problem fawr? A allai'r Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus fod yn gyfrifol am graffu ar 
Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru gan ei fod yn gorff hyd braich i Lywodraeth Cymru? Sut 
mae'r Alban wedi ymdrin â hyn?

- Dylai un o bwyllgorau'r Cynulliad fod yn gyfrifol am oruchwyliaeth strategol yr 
Awdurdod (yn debyg i gyfrifoldebau'r Pwyllgor Cyllid dros Swyddfa Archwilio 
Cymru);

Pwerau'r Awdurdod dros orfodi a chosbau

- Angen tîm gorfodi cryf o'r cychwyn cyntaf (fel ei fod wedi'i sefydlu'n barod i ymdrin 
â threthi datganoledig yn y dyfodol);

- Angen swyddogion lleol er mwyn sicrhau bod aelod o staff yr Awdurdod a all helpu 
ar gael i drethdalwyr;

Tudalen y pecyn 6



3

- Cyfryngwyr/hwyluswyr annibynnol, trydydd parti i gynnig Dull Amgen o Ddatrys 
Anghydfod fel haen ychwanegol cyn tribiwnlys (A ddylid cael system tribiwnlysoedd 
yng Nghymru?); 

- Symleiddio ffurflenni a'u gwneud yn haws eu defnyddio;

- Dylid ystyried graddfa gosbau sy'n gysylltiedig â throsiant busnes (yn y Bil mae rhai 
cosbau wedi'u graddio, ond nid pob un - dylai fod yn gyson?);

-  Angen deddfu ar gyfer efadu ac atal camddefnydd ond nid o reidrwydd ar gyfer osgoi 
(fel yn yr Alban);

- Cyn pennu lefelau'r cosbau, mae angen gweld tystiolaeth o faint o gosb sy'n effeithiol 
er mwyn annog pobl i beidio â chamddefnyddio'r system.

- Dylai fod yn ofynnol i Gyllid a Thollau EM anfon data a gwybodaeth am unrhyw 
achosion o efadu trethi eraill a all gael effaith ar drethi datganoledig Cymru.

Ymwybyddiaeth y cyhoedd o newidiadau i system drethi Cymru

- Dylid cynnal ymgyrch ymwybyddiaeth gyffredinol ynglŷn ag Awdurdod Cyllid 
Cymru a'i swyddogaethau, ac ymgyrch wedi'i thargedu ar gyfer y trethi bach;

- Nid yw'r cyhoedd yn ymwybodol iawn o'r bwriad i gyflwyno trethi datganoledig ond, 
yn ymarferol, a oes angen i'r cyhoedd wybod am Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru os bydd 
Cyllid a Thollau EM yn cael ei ddefnyddio fel asiant casglu gan na fydd rhyw lawer 
yn newid i drethdalwyr mewn gwirionedd?

- Mae angen trosglwyddo'n llyfn wrth gyflwyno'r newidiadau;

- Cyrff proffesiynol yw'r rhai gorau i gyfathrebu ag ymarferwyr ynglŷn â'r newidiadau;

- Tryloywder. Mae gan drethdalwyr hawl i wybod pwy sy'n casglu eu harian ac ar beth 
y mae'n cael ei wario - a ellid hysbysebu hyn yn y Siarter?

- Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru fod yn ofalus ar y cychwyn a pharcio unrhyw syniadau 
newydd neu gamau arloesol, er mwyn gwneud yn siŵr eu bod yn cael pethau'n iawn 
gan fod angen i'r cyhoedd fod â hyder yn y system;

- Canmoliaeth ynglŷn â chyflwyno deddfwriaeth fframwaith yn gyntaf.

Ffeilio trethi ar-lein a darparu cyngor

- Dylai ffeilio ar-lein fod yn opsiwn, gyda chefnogaeth ar gael;

- Mae'n cael ei dderbyn yn eang erbyn hyn mai digidol yw'r dewis cyntaf, ar yr amod 
bod dewis arall, heb gosb, ar gael;

- Mae cyswllt band eang yn broblem enfawr yng Nghymru;

- Osgoi cyngor tramor a sicrhau bod y cwmwl yn aros yn yr awdurdodaeth gywir os 
caiff ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer systemau ar-lein;

Tudalen y pecyn 7



4

- Gallu cysylltu'n uniongyrchol â staff Cyllid a Thollau EM sy'n gwneud y gwaith 
casglu;

- Dylai unrhyw gytundeb gwasanaeth neu Femorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth gyda'r 
asiant casglu gynnwys ymgysylltu â chwsmeriaid.

Tudalen y pecyn 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 
Amcangyfrif ar gyfer Blwyddyn Ariannol 2016/17 

Cyflwyniad i Gyfarfod Pwyllgor Cyllid  
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 

7 Hydref 2015 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(4)-21-15 P2

Tudalen y pecyn 9

Eitem 4



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 2 o 16 
 

 

Cynnwys             Tudalen  

 

 

1.  Cyflwyniad i’r cyflwyniad amcangyfrifon 3  

 

2.  Rôl Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 4 

 

3.  Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 5 

 

4.  Perfformiad Ariannol 6 

 

5.  Effeithlonrwydd ac Effeithiolrwydd 7  

 

6.  Cynllunio Strategol 10 

 

7.  Pensiynau Llywodraeth Leol 11 

 

8.  Dyfarniadau Cyflog 11 

 

9.  Pwysau Costau 12 

 

 

 

Atodiadau   

 

Atodiad A - Amcangyfrifon 2016/17 14 

 

Atodiad B – Y Strwythur Sefydliadol er Mehefin 2015 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 3 o 16 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniad i’r cyflwyniad amcangyfrifon hwn 

 
1.1 Rwyf yn cyflwyno’r amcangyfrif cyllideb hwn yn unol â pharagraff 15 o Atodlen 1 i 

Ddeddf Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2005, fel y’i diwygiwyd 
gan Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru 2006.  Mae’n nodi’r adnoddau sydd eu hangen o 
Gronfa Gyfunol Cymru i gyflawni fy swyddogaethau statudol ar wahân i’m cyflog, 
Yswiriant Gwladol a chostau pensiwn, sy’n cael eu codi’n uniongyrchol ar wahân ar 
Gronfa Gyfunol Cymru ac nad ydynt, felly, yn rhan o’r amcangyfrif hwn.  Er hynny, 
maent wedi’u cofnodi yn fy Nghyfrifon Blynyddol er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn dangos 
cyfanswm costau rhedeg y swyddfa. 

 
1.2 Dyma’r bumed waith y mae amcangyfrifon Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 

Cymru (OGCC) wedi’u cyflwyno i’r Pedwerydd Cynulliad.  Mae’r Pwyllgor Cyllid yn 
gyfrifol am ystyried y cyflwyniad amcangyfrifon hwn.  Mae’r Pwyllgor Cymunedau, 
Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol yn gyfrifol am ystyried gwaith y swyddfa.  Mae 
OGCC hefyd yn dod gerbron y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus i drafod y Cyfrifon 
Blynyddol yn ôl gofynion y Pwyllgor hwnnw.  Mae’r wybodaeth yn y papur hwn yn 
ymwneud yn benodol â’r materion hynny sy’n rhan o gylch gwaith y Pwyllgor Cyllid. 

 
1.3 Mae Deddf Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2005 yn sefydlu 

swydd yr Ombwdsmon yn gorfforaeth undyn.  Mae’r Ombwdsmon yn atebol i 
Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, drwy fecanwaith yr adroddiad blynyddol, a hefyd fel 
Swyddog Cyfrifyddu dros yr arian cyhoeddus y mae’r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol yn ei 
ymddiried i’r Ombwdsmon er mwyn cyflawni ei swyddogaethau. 

 
1.4 Y gwariant adnoddau net a geisir am 2016/17 yw £4,090,000, gyda gofyniad net am 

arian parod o £4,279,000.  Mae hyn yn setliad gwastad ac yn cadw fy nghyllideb ar 
ddim mwy na 0.03% o Floc Cymru.  Mae’n darparu ar gyfer dyfarniadau cyflog i staff 
a phwysau eraill oherwydd chwyddiant heblaw’r cynnydd yn y taliad blynyddol am y 
diffyg pensiwn a chynnydd o £12,000 mewn cyfalaf i’w fuddsoddi mewn technolegau 
newydd i wella effeithlonrwydd.  Mae’r manylion yn y papur hwn yn ategu’r 
cyflwyniad amcangyfrifon hwn. 

 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 4 o 16 
 

 

 

2.  Rôl Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 

 

2.1 Fel Ombwdsmon, mae gennyf ddwy rôl benodol. Y gyntaf yw ystyried cwynion am 
ddarparwyr gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru; yr ail yw ystyried cwynion bod 
aelodau o awdurdodau lleol wedi torri’r Cod Ymddygiad. Rwyf yn annibynnol ar holl 
gyrff llywodraeth ac nid wyf yn codi tâl am y gwasanaeth yr wyf yn ei ddarparu. 

 

2.2 Cwynion am ddarparwyr gwasanaethau cyhoeddus 
 
2.2.1 O dan Ddeddf OGCC 2005, rwyf yn ystyried cwynion am gyrff sydd, at ei gilydd, yn 

rhai sy’n darparu gwasanaethau cyhoeddus lle mae’r cyfrifoldeb am eu darparu 
wedi’i ddatganoli i Gymru. Ymhlith y mathau o gyrff y gallaf ymchwilio iddynt y mae: 
 
• llywodraeth leol (cynghorau sir a chynghorau cymuned); 
• y Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol (gan gynnwys meddygon teulu a deintyddion); 
• landlordiaid cymdeithasol cofrestredig (cymdeithasau tai); 
• a Llywodraeth Cymru, ynghyd â’r cyrff y mae’n eu noddi. 
 
Er 1 Tachwedd 2014, rwyf hefyd yn gallu ystyried cwynion am wasanaethau gofal 
cymdeithasol a lliniarol sydd wedi’u trefnu neu eu hariannu’n breifat. 
 

2.2.2 Wrth ystyried cwynion, rwyf yn edrych i weld a yw pobl wedi’u trin yn annheg neu’n 
anystyriol, neu wedi cael gwasanaeth gwael drwy ddiffyg ar ran y darparwr 
gwasanaeth.  Ystyrir hefyd a yw’r darparwr gwasanaeth wedi gweithredu’n unol â’r 
gyfraith a’i bolisïau ei hun.  Os cadarnheir cwyn, byddaf yn argymell ffordd briodol o 
wneud iawn.  Y brif ffordd o wneud iawn a argymhellir yw rhoi’r achwynydd (neu’r un 
a gafodd gam) yn ôl yn y sefyllfa y buasai ynddi pe na byddai’r broblem wedi 
digwydd, os yw hynny’n bosibl.  Yn ogystal â hyn, os byddaf yn gweld tystiolaeth o 
wendid systematig drwy’r ymchwiliad, fe wneir argymhellion i’w gwneud yn llai 
tebygol y bydd pobl eraill yn profi effaith debyg yn y dyfodol. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 12



 
 

 
 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 5 o 16 

 
 
2.2.3 Mae fy Nhîm Cyngor ar Gwynion hefyd yn darparu gwasanaeth cyfeirio Cwynion 

Cymru sy’n wasanaeth annibynnol a diduedd a ddarperir dros y ffôn ac ar y we.  
Mae’n cynnig cyngor i aelodau o’r cyhoedd ynghylch sut i gwyno am wasanaeth 
cyhoeddus ac yn cyfeirio eu cwyn at y sefydliad sy’n darparu’r gwasanaeth y maent 
am gwyno yn ei gylch, neu at yr ombwdsmon neu berson neu sefydliad annibynnol 
priodol sy’n delio â chwynion. 

 
2.3 Cwynion Cod Ymddygiad  
 
2.3.1 O dan ddarpariaethau Rhan III o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 a hefyd o dan 

Orchmynion perthnasol a wneir gan Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru o dan y Ddeddf 
honno, rwyf yn ystyried cwynion bod aelodau o awdurdodau lleol wedi torri Cod 
Ymddygiad eu hawdurdod. Gallaf ystyried cwynion am ymddygiad aelodau: 
 
• cynghorau sir a chynghorau bwrdeistref sirol 
• cynghorau cymuned 
• awdurdodau tân 
• awdurdodau parc cenedlaethol 
• paneli’r heddlu a throseddu. 
 
Mae gan yr holl awdurdodau hyn God Ymddygiad sy’n nodi’n fanwl sut y mae 
aelodau i ddilyn egwyddorion ymddygiad cydnabyddedig mewn bywyd cyhoeddus. 

 

 

3.  Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 

 

3.1 Oherwydd sefyllfa gyfansoddiadol y gorfforaeth undyn, rhaid i’r cyfrifoldeb ac 
atebolrwydd am y gweithgareddau a gyflawnir gan fy swyddfa aros gyda mi, fel 
Ombwdsmon.   

 
3.2 Gan ystyried sefyllfa gyfansoddiadol y gorfforaeth undyn, rwyf wedi sefydlu Panel 

Cynghori sy’n fy herio ac yn fy nghynorthwyo fel Ombwdsmon. Yn ogystal â hyn, 
mae Pwyllgor Archwilio a Sicrhau Risg, is-bwyllgor i’r Panel, sy’n darparu cymorth 
penodol i mi mewn perthynas â’m cyfrifoldebau fel Swyddog Cyfrifyddu. Mae gwaith  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 6 o 16 
 

 
 
 
         y ddau wedi’i drafod yn fwy manwl yn y Datganiad Llywodraethu yn fy Nghyfrifon 

Blynyddol ar gyfer 2014/15, a gyhoeddwyd yn Awst 2015.  Fodd bynnag, manteisiaf 
ar y cyfle i ddatgan yma fy mod yn falch o nodi bod Mrs Sharon Warnes, a oedd 
gynt yn Gyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol/Uwch Reolwr Polisi a Pherfformiad yng Nghyngor 
Gwynedd, wedi’i phenodi i’r Panel Cynghori ar ôl ymarfer recriwtio agored (yn dilyn 
ymddiswyddiad Mr Ceri Stradling ar ddiwedd 2013/14). Mae Mrs Warnes hefyd yn 
eistedd ar y Pwyllgor Archwilio a Sicrhau Risg. 

 
 

4. Perfformiad Ariannol 

 

4.1 Mae’r trefniadau ar gyfer rheoli ariannol a rheolaeth fewnol wedi’u hadolygu’n 
annibynnol gan Deloitte, sef archwilwyr mewnol OGCC.  Penodwyd Deloitte i 
weithredu o 1 Ebrill 2011.  Roedd Deloitte wedi cynllunio ei waith ar sail ei asesiad 
cyffredinol o anghenion. Mae ei adroddiadau wedi nodi bod y fframwaith ar gyfer 
rheolaeth fewnol y sefydliad yn foddhaol ac wedi gwneud argymhellion ar gyfer 
gwella lle’r oedd angen.  

 
4.2 Yn Adroddiad Blynyddol Deloitte ar yr Archwiliad Mewnol ar gyfer y flwyddyn 

2014/15 nodwyd: “Based on the work we have undertaken during the year we are 
able to conclude that the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) has a 
basically sound system of internal control, which should provide substantial 
assurance regarding the achievement of PSOW’s objectives.” Roedd chwe 
argymhelliad newydd (dau â blaenoriaeth ganolig a phedwar â blaenoriaeth isel). 

 
4.3 Roedd yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol wedi datgan barn archwilio ddiamod am y cyfrifon 

blynyddol ar gyfer y flwyddyn 2014/15 yn yr un modd â phob blwyddyn flaenorol.    
 
4.4 Mae OGCC wedi gweithio ar sail yr egwyddor y dylai gorbenion y swyddfa fod yn llai 

na 5% o gyfanswm y gwariant.  Cyflawnwyd hyn bob amser ers sefydlu’r swyddfa o 
dan Ddeddf Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2005 ac mae’n 
egwyddor sy’n deillio o arferion da yn y sector cyhoeddus.  Ceir tystiolaeth o hyn yn 
y dadansoddiad o wariant ar nodau ac amcanion fy Nghynllun Strategol sydd yn y 
Cyfrifon Blynyddol lle nodwyd bod y gorbenion yn 4.5% o gyfanswm y costau. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



 
 

 
 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 7 o 16 

 

 

5. Effeithlonrwydd ac Effeithiolrwydd 

 

5.1 Mae OGCC wedi adrodd o’r blaen i’r Pwyllgor Cyllid ar y cydymdrech a gafwyd i 
ddarparu gwasanaeth mwy effeithlon ac effeithiol ar ddechrau’r broses trafod 
cwynion, a hefyd ar symleiddio’r cam ymchwilio.  Mae’r trefniadau hyn wedi bod yn 
hanfodol ers hynny wrth ddelio â’r nifer cynyddol o ymholiadau a chwynion a gafodd 
fy swyddfa. 

 
5.2 Mae’r duedd gynyddol honno wedi parhau, fel y mae’r graff isod yn dangos:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3    Mae’n drawiadol iawn bod nifer yr ymholiadau a chwynion a gafwyd dros y cyfnod o 

bum mlynedd rhwng 2010/11 a 2014/15 wedi cynyddu mwy na dwywaith tra oedd y 
gwariant, ar ôl addasu ar gyfer chwyddiant, wedi gostwng 2%, fel y mae’r tabl isod 
yn dangos. 

 

£200 

£400 

£600 

£800 

£1,000 

£1,200 

£1,400 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

3,500 

4,000 

4,500 

5,000 

5,500 

6,000 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

 A
ch

o
si

o
n

 

Llwyth Achosion o'i gymharu a'r Gost Uned 

Llwyth Achosion Cost Uned 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 8 o 16 
 

 
  

 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 % 
newid 

Ymholiadau 1,127 1,866 2,906 3,234 3,470 +208 

Cwynion am Gyrff Cyhoeddus 1,425 1,605 1,790 1,932 2,065 +45 

Cwynion Cod Ymddygiad 277 412 291 226 231 -17 

       

Gwariant, ar ôl addasu ar 

gyfer chwyddiant 
£3,566k £3,292k £3,581k £3,419k £3,515k -2 

 
5.4 Arloesi 
 
5.4.1 Er fy mod yn cydnabod bod gwaith rhagorol wedi’i wneud mewn blynyddoedd 

blaenorol i symleiddio prosesau trafod cwynion y swyddfa, roeddwn yn ymwybodol 
iawn bod y tueddiadau’n parhau ar i fyny.  Mae’n werth nodi mai ym mis Gorffennaf 
2014 y cafwyd y nifer mwyaf o ymholiadau a’r nifer mwyaf o gwynion yn y swyddfa 
ers ei sefydlu yn Ebrill 2006.  Felly cychwynnais brosiect arloesi a oedd yn cynnwys 
yr holl staff i bennu meysydd lle gellid cael rhagor o arbedion drwy effeithlonrwydd.  
O ganlyniad i’r gwaith hwnnw, cytunwyd ar fwy na 30 o bwyntiau gweithredu.  
Roedd y rhan fwyaf o’r rhain yn ymwneud â newidiadau mewnol ac yn canolbwyntio 
ar gadarnhau a chyflymu’r broses o droi’n ‘swyddfa ddi-bapur’.  Rydym wedi dod i’r 
casgliad y bydd y dull hwn o weithredu yn ein galluogi i ddod yn fwy effeithlon yn yr 
agweddau ymarferol ar ddelio â dogfennau gwaith achos.  Fodd bynnag, mae 
goblygiadau wedi codi hefyd i gyrff sydd o fewn fy awdurdodaeth, gan fy mod 
bellach yn gofyn am gofnodion ar ffurf electronig yn unig (ac, mewn perthynas â 
hynny, rwyf yn caniatáu llai o amser i gyrff o fewn fy awdurdodaeth ar gyfer 
darparu’r cofnodion yr wyf yn gofyn amdanynt). 

 
5.5 Hyrwyddo Gwelliannau 
 
5.5.1 Mewn perthynas â’r pryder a deimlaf ynghylch y cynnydd parhaus yn nifer y 

cwynion, rwyf wedi ystyried beth a allwn ei wneud i hyrwyddo gwelliannau wrth 
drafod cwynion mewn cyrff sydd o fewn fy awdurdodaeth, a hefyd sut y gallwn 
gyfrannu’n fwy effeithiol at wella’r ffordd o ddarparu gwasanaethau cyhoeddus.   O 
ganlyniad i hyn, cyflwynais rolau swydd newydd a gwahanol yn ystod Mehefin 2015.  
Yn benodol, adolygwyd nifer o’r swyddi presennol ac, o ganlyniad, cyflwynwyd 
swyddi Rheolwyr Ymchwilio Cynorthwyol a Swyddogion Ymchwilio a Gwella.   Er y  

Tudalen y pecyn 16



 
 

 
 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 9 o 16 

 

 

byddant yn parhau i chwarae rhan bwysig drwy ymchwilio yn y dyfodol, bydd y 

dyletswyddau gwella yn y ddwy rôl hyn yn cynnwys ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid 

mewn cyrff penodol sydd o fewn fy awdurdodaeth yn ogystal ag arwain ar feysydd 

thematig sy’n parhau i effeithio ar ansawdd gwasanaethau cyhoeddus. 

 

 

5.6 Cynghorwyr proffesiynol  
 
5.6.1 Rwyf yn cael cymorth gan gynghorwyr clinigol sy’n arbenigo mewn gwahanol 

agweddau ar y proffesiynau iechyd wrth ystyried achosion iechyd.  O’r blaen, roedd 
y swyddfa’n dibynnu’n llwyr ar gynghorwyr a oedd yn cael eu cymryd ymlaen drwy 
drefniant â Swyddfa’r Ombwdsmon Seneddol a Gwasanaeth Iechyd (OPHSO), drwy 
ailgodi ffioedd ar fy swyddfa. Mae’r Pwyllgor wedi’i hysbysu o’r blaen am 
benderfyniad OGCC i gymryd ymlaen nifer o gynghorwyr clinigol yn uniongyrchol a 
fydd yn dod i’r swyddfa yn ôl yr angen.  Rydym yn parhau’n fodlon iawn ar yr effaith 
gadarnhaol a gafwyd ar wasanaeth OGCC o ganlyniad i hyn.  Mae hyn wedi ein 
galluogi i adolygu achosion yn fwy prydlon wrth ddechrau ystyried cwynion, ac wedi 
hwyluso rhyngweithio mwy pwrpasol ac effeithiol â chynghorwyr arbenigol eraill yn 
OPHSO yn ystod ymchwiliadau. Mae hyn wedi lleihau costau fy swyddfa gan fod llai 
o angen i anfon ffeiliau achos i OPHSO ym Manceinion neu Lundain.  Fodd bynnag, 
er ein bod yn ceisio lleihau’r defnydd o’r trefniant â OPHSO i’r graddau mwyaf 
posibl, rydym yn parhau i ddibynnu’n helaeth ar y gwasanaeth hwn.  Ar ben hynny, 
gan fod nifer y cwynion iechyd sy’n dod i’m swyddfa yn parhau i gynyddu, mae’n 
debygol hefyd y bydd angen i mi wneud mwy o geisiadau am gyngor, gan arwain at 
gost fwy byth i’m swyddfa.   
 

5.6.2 Rwyf hefyd yn cymryd ymlaen nifer o gynghorwyr proffesiynol eraill ym meysydd 
gofal cymdeithasol a chynllunio drwy drefniant uniongyrchol.  Mae’r rhain yn profi eu 
gwerth hefyd, yn enwedig drwy roi’r gallu i benderfynu’n gynnar cyn cam ymchwilio’r 
broses gwyno.  Rwyf yn ymwybodol ei bod yn debygol iawn y bydd angen i mi 
wneud mwy o ddefnydd o’r cynghorwyr sy’n darparu cyngor proffesiynol ar faterion 
gofal cymdeithasol gan y bydd angen i’r swyddfa ystyried cwynion ychwanegol o’r 
math hwn o ganlyniad i ddiwygio’r weithdrefn gwyno statudol ar gyfer gofal 
cymdeithasol ac ehangu fy awdurdodaeth yn y maes hwn. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 10 o 16 
 

 
 

6. Cynllunio Strategol  

 

6.1 Y prif nodau strategol ar gyfer y swyddfa hyd 2015/16 oedd: 
 

1. Cynnig gwasanaeth lle mae gofal rhagorol am gwsmeriaid yn flaenllaw yn ein 
holl waith, lle’r ydym yn gweithio i godi ymwybyddiaeth o’n gwasanaeth ac yn 
gwneud ein gorau i’w wneud yn hygyrch i bawb ac yn hawdd ei ddefnyddio. 

 
2. Darparu gwasanaeth trafod cwynion o ansawdd uchel, sy’n ystyried ac yn 

penderfynu ar gwynion mewn ffordd drwyadl ond cymesur, ac yn cyfleu 
penderfyniadau’n glir. 

 
3. Defnyddio’r wybodaeth a gawn o’n hymchwiliadau i gyfrannu at wella’r darparu 

ar wasanaethau cyhoeddus ac i gyfrannu at lunio polisi cyhoeddus. 
 
4. Parhau i ddadansoddi a gwella effeithlonrwydd ac effeithiolrwydd ein 

llywodraethu, ein prosesau busnes a’n swyddogaethau cymorth, er mwyn 
dangos rhagor o dryloywder a sicrhau’r defnydd gorau o’r arian cyhoeddus 
sydd wedi’i ymddiried i ni. 

  
6.2 Rwyf yn adolygu’r nodau hyn ar hyn o bryd gyda’m staff a rhanddeiliaid eraill, er 

mwyn datblygu cynllun strategol newydd i fynd â ni ymlaen i 2018/19.   
 
6.3 Y brif ystyriaeth i ni fydd y posibilrwydd o gyflwyno Deddf Ombwdsmon 

Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus newydd yn ystod 2016, yn dilyn ymchwiliad Pwyllgor 
Cyllid y Cynulliad i bwerau’r Ombwdsmon yn ystod 2015.   Wrth gwrs, bydd y 
Pwyllgor Cyllid yn ymwybodol iawn mai’r cyntaf o’i argymhellion ar ôl ei ymchwiliad 
oedd y canlynol: 
 

“Mae’r Pwyllgor wedi’i ddarbwyllo gan y dystiolaeth y dylai pwerau’r 
Ombwdsmon gael eu diwygio. Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai bil gael ei 
gyflwyno yn y Cynulliad i ymestyn rôl yr Ombwdsmon.” 

 
6.4 Rwyf yn tynnu sylw’r Pwyllgor Cyllid at y ffaith mai fy mwriad yw, os cyflwynir Deddf 

newydd yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 2016/17, y byddaf yn rheoli’r cyfnod pontio ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn honno o fewn o gofyniad net am arian parod o £4,279,000. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



 
 

 
 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 11 o 16 

7. Pensiynau Llywodraeth Leol 

 
7.1 O dan Ddeddf Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2005, mae’r rhan 

fwyaf o’m staff yn aelodau o Brif Gynllun Pensiwn y Gwasanaeth Sifil.  Mewn 
cyflwyniadau blaenorol rwyf wedi nodi bod hawl gan nifer o aelodau staff a oedd 
wedi’u cyflogi cynt gan y Comisiwn dros Weinyddu Lleol yng Nghymru, pan gafodd 
swyddfa Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru ei sefydlu yn 2006, i aros 
yng Nghynllun Pensiwn Llywodraeth Leol.  Ers hynny, mae’r cynllun, a weinyddir 
gan Gyngor Sir Caerdydd, wedi parhau mewn diffyg.  Mae hyn wedi digwydd am fod 
y cynnydd mewn disgwyliad oes wedi effeithio ar rwymedigaethau’r cynllun pensiwn 
ac am fod ei asedau wedi lleihau oherwydd gostyngiad yng ngwerth ei 
fuddsoddiadau a chyfraddau elw is. 

 

7.2 Nodwyd yr atebolrwydd am y diffyg ar ôl adolygiad actwaraidd tair blynedd a 
chafodd ei gynnwys yn yr ail amcangyfrif atodol ar gyfer 2011/12 fel Gwariant a 
Reolir yn Flynyddol (AME).  Er hynny, mae’r taliadau blynyddol yn cael eu trin fel 
rhai o fewn y Terfyn Gwariant Adrannol.  Mae’r taliadau hyn yn cynyddu £13,000 
bob blwyddyn a byddant yn parhau tan 2017/18. 

 
7.3 Roedd sefyllfa ariannu’r Cynllun wedi dirywio er 31 Mawrth 2010, yn bennaf 

oherwydd amrywiadau mewn amodau ariannol (sydd wedi effeithio ar yr elw 
gwirioneddol o fuddsoddi er 31 Mawrth 2010 yn ogystal â’r elw disgwyliedig yn y 
dyfodol).  Mae hyn wedi’i wrthbwyso’n rhannol gan godiadau cyflog llai na’r disgwyl 
a chyfraniadau diffyg a dalwyd er 31 Mawrth 2010.  Mae’r prisiad actwaraidd 
diweddaraf ar 31 Mawrth 2015 yn cydnabod bod y diffyg wedi gostwng £230,000 o 
£720,000 ar 31 Mawrth 2014 i £490,000.  Rhagwelir y bydd y diffyg yn cael ei ddileu 
dros y tair blwyddyn ariannol nesaf drwy’r taliadau ychwanegol a wneir i’r Cynllun yn 
7.2 uchod. 

 
  

8. Dyfarniadau cyflog 
 
8.1 Mae cyflogau’r swyddfa wedi’u seilio ar raddfeydd cyflog Llywodraeth Leol Cymru a 

Lloegr a rhoddir codiadau yn ôl setliadau a gytunir yn y Cyd-gyngor Cenedlaethol ar 
gyfer Gwasanaethau Llywodraeth Leol.  Cytunwyd ar godiad cyflog o 2% yn 
2014/15 ar gyfer y ddwy flynedd rhwng Ebrill 2014 a Mawrth 2016.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 12 o 16 
 

 
9. Pwysau Costau  
 
9.1 Er gwaethaf y pwysau costau a’r pwysau eraill ar fy ngwasanaeth, yn y cyflwyniad 

amcangyfrif cyllideb hwn ar gyfer 2016/17 rwyf yn cynnig setliad gwastad ac yn aros 
ar 0.03% o’r bloc Cymru disgwyliedig. Yr unig arian ychwanegol a geisir yw’r 
cynnydd blynyddol o £13,000 a gytunwyd mewn taliadau diffyg pensiwn a chynnydd 
bach mewn cyfalaf o £12,000.  

 
9.2 Mae’r swyddfa’n parhau i amsugno’r cynnydd mewn costau. Mae Trysorlys EM wedi 

datgan mai’r amcangyfrifon presennol ar gyfer Datchwyddwyr CMC, sef y mesur o 
chwyddiant ar gyfer y blynyddoedd nesaf, yw 1.0% ar gyfer 2015/16 a 1.7% ar gyfer 
2016/17. 

 
9.3  Mae’r swyddfa wedi amsugno costau uwch sy’n gysylltiedig â’r cynnydd mewn 

pensiynau ar gyfer yr Ombwdsmon blaenorol y telir am ei bensiynau o’m dyraniad 
cyllideb i. Yn unol â’r Gorchymyn Cynnydd Pensiynau ar gyfer 2015, mae’r taliadau 
pensiwn hyn wedi cynyddu 1.2% ac wedi ychwanegu £2,000 at gostau rhedeg y 
swyddfa hon. Mae’n debygol mai tua 2% fydd y cynnydd mewn pensiynau yn 
2016/17 fel y ceir cynnydd pellach mewn costau o £3,000. 

 
9.4  Mae’r swyddfa’n parhau i gwrdd â chynnydd mewn taliadau gwasanaeth, ardrethi a 

chyfleustodau ar y safle ym Mhencoed. Fodd bynnag, mae arnom angen rhagor o le 
ar gyfer archifau oherwydd yr angen i gadw mwy o ffeiliau achos.  Bydd hyn hefyd 
yn ein galluogi i arloesi drwy ddefnyddio technoleg ar gyfer pethau fel 
fideogynadledda, Skype a sganio dogfennau.  Yn ogystal â hyn, bydd yn sicrhau 
bod y swyddfa’n addas ar gyfer y deng mlynedd nesaf, gan gynnwys y posibilrwydd 
o gynnwys staff ychwanegol os bydd yr Ombwdsmon yn cael pwerau ychwanegol o 
dan unrhyw Ddeddf newydd.  Felly, drwy’r negodiadau â’n landlord presennol ar 
gyfer adnewyddu’r les 10 mlynedd, rydym wedi caffael swyddfeydd ychwanegol yn 
yr un adeilad heb unrhyw gostau rhent ychwanegol er y bydd cynnydd mewn 
taliadau gwasanaeth a chostau eraill sy’n gysylltiedig ag adeiladau.   O ganlyniad i 
hyn, mae’r gost y droedfedd sgwâr am rent wedi gostwng o £13 i £9, sy’n rhoi 
gwerth rhagorol am arian ar gyfer swyddfeydd. 

 
9.5  Er bod costau argraffu, postio a chludo wedi parhau i godi, rydym yn bwriadu 

amsugno’r costau hyn drwy weithredu cynlluniau amrywiol i sicrhau effeithlonrwydd 
a lleihau costau sy’n cynnwys hybu’r defnydd o argraffu ar ddwy ochr, rhagor o 
ddefnydd o’r post ail ddosbarth a gwerthuso costau cludwyr yn rheolaidd. 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 
 

 
 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 13 o 16 

 
 
9.6  Rydym yn parhau i groesawu datblygiadau technegol i wella effeithlonrwydd a 

chymryd camau i droi’r swyddfa’n swyddfa ddi-bapur. Mae angen cynyddu ein 
cyllideb cyfalaf o £13,000 i £25,000 i’n galluogi i barhau i fuddsoddi yn y 
technolegau hyn. 

 
9.7 O ran caffael, y nod wrth negodi contractau newydd ac adolygu contractau 

presennol yw lleihau costau a/neu wella’r dull o weithio.  Rhai enghreifftiau o hyn yw 
trefniant newydd i integreiddio ffonau symudol a chyfrifiaduron llechen, amnewid 
cyfrifiaduron personol manyleb isel ar gyfer staff rheng flaen, cynyddu lled band ar 
gyfer y rhyngrwyd heb gost ychwanegol a gwella’r offer ar gyfer mesur perfformiad 
rheolwyr drwy feddalwedd ffôn newydd. Rydym yn parhau i wella ein system trafod 
cwynion i’w gwneud yn fwy hwylus, i adlewyrchu datblygiadau yn ein prosesau 
mewnol ac i barhau i gydymffurfio â deddfwriaeth.  

 
9.8 Yn olaf, rwyf yn tynnu sylw’r Pwyllgor at y ffaith nad yw fy amcangyfrif cyllideb yn 

cynnwys unrhyw ddarpariaeth wrth gefn i gwrdd ag eitemau gwariant annisgwyl, fel 
heriau cyfreithiol i’m penderfyniadau ar waith achos. 

 
 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 
Medi 2015 
 
 
***************************************************************************************************** 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 21



 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 14 o 16 
 

 

Atodiad 1 

Amcangyfrifon 2016/17 

 

 
Gwirioneddol 

2014/15 
Cyllideb 
2015/16 

Amcangyfrif 
2016/17 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
DEL Cyfalaf 17 13 25 
DEL Refeniw Cyllidol    
Cyflogau a chostau cysylltiedig 2,530 2,788 2,788 
Costau cysylltiedig â Chynllun Pensiwn 
Llywodraeth Leol 254 266 279 
 2,784 3,054 3,067 
Adeiladau 353 399 407 
Systemau a chymorth cyfrifiaduron 141 149 149 
Costau swyddfa 142 127 130 
Ffioedd cynghorol a chyfreithiol 527 310 310 
Cyfathrebu 103 82 82 
Hyfforddi a recriwtio 46 44 40 
Teithio a chynhaliaeth 27 36 29 
Ffi archwilio 20 20 20 
Is-gyfanswm 4,143 4,221 4,234 
Incwm 0 0 0 
Cyfanswm DEL Refeniw Cyllidol 4,143 4,221 4,234 
 
DEL nad yw’n arian parod    
Dibrisiant 86 75 80 
 
DEL Refeniw (B+C) 4,229 4,296 4,314 
Cyfanswm DEL  (A+B+C) 4,246 4,309 4,339 
 
Gwariant a Reolir yn Flynyddol (AME)    
Symudiad yng Nghynllun Pensiwn 
Llywodraeth Leol -254 -266 -279 
Symudiad mewn darpariaethau 94 20 30 
Cyfanswm AME -160 -246 -249 
Cyfanswm y Gwariant a Reolir    
A+B+C+D 4,086 4,063 4,090 
    
Gofyniad am Adnoddau 4,086 4,063 4,090 
Dibrisiant -86 -75 -80 
Newid mewn Darpariaethau -94 -20 -30 
Defnydd o Ddarpariaethau 254 266 279 
Symudiadau eraill mewn Cyfalaf Gweithio -1 20 20 
Gofyniad Net am Arian Parod 4,159 4,254 4,279 

 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 22



 
 

 
 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Cyflwyniad Amcangyfrifon 2016/17            Tudalen 15 o 16 

Cy
fa

rw
yd

dw
r Y

m
ch

wi
lia

da
u 

Cy
no

rth
wy

ol
 ac

 
Ym

gy
ng

ho
ry

dd
 C

yf
re

ith
io

l

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ym
ch

wi
lio

 x
7

Om
bw

ds
mo

n G
wa

sa
na

eth
au

 C
yh

oe
dd

us
Cy

m
ru

Ym
gn

gh
or

yd
d

Cy
llid

 x 
0.

5

Sw
yd

do
g 

Gw
yb

od
ae

th
Rh

eo
li 

Rh
eo

lw
rP

ol
isi

 a 
Ch

yf
at

hr
eb

u

Pr
if 

Sw
yd

do
g 

gw
eit

hr
ed

ol
 a 

Cy
fa

rw
yd

dw
r Y

m
ch

wi
lia

da
u

Rh
eo

lw
rY

m
ch

wi
lio

Ti
m

 Y
m

ch
wi

lio

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ym
ch

wi
lio

 x6

Rh
eo

lw
r G

wa
sa

na
et

ha
u 

Co
rff

or
ae

th
ol

Gw
as

an
et

ha
u 

Co
rfo

ra
eth

ol
 a

 G
we

in
yd

di
ait

h

Sw
yd

do
g

Gw
as

an
ae

th
au

 
Co

rff
or

ae
th

ol
x3

Sw
yd

do
g 

 G
w

ai
th

 
A

ch
os

  x
6

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ym
ch

wi
lio

 a 
Gw

ell
ha

d 
 x

2
Sw

yd
do

g 
Ce

fn
og

ae
th

 
Gw

ait
h 

Ac
ho

s x
4

Rh
eo

lw
r C

yn
or

thw
yo

l -
Rh

eo
lw

r 
G

wa
sa

na
et

ha
u

Ti
m

 C
yn

go
ra

r G
wy

ni
on

Cy
no

rth
wy

-y
dd

 
Pe

rs
on

ol
 yr

 
Om

bw
ds

m
on

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ym
ch

w
ilio

 a 
G

w
el

lh
ad

Po
lis

ia
 C

hy
fa

th
re

bu

Rh
eo

lw
rA

do
lyg

u

Rh
eo

lw
rY

m
ch

wi
lio

Rh
eo

lw
r C

yn
or

th
wy

ol
 -

Ce
fn

og
ae

th
 G

wa
ith

 
Ac

ho
s

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ym
ch

wi
lio

x7

Ti
m

 Y
m

ch
wi

lio

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ym
ch

wi
lio

 a 
Gw

ell
ha

d 
x 2

Rh
eo

lw
rY

m
ch

wi
lio

Sw
yd

do
g 

Ch
yf

at
hr

eb
u 

a 
Ph

ol
is

i 
x2

Rh
eo

lw
r

Ym
ch

w
ilio

 
Cy

no
rt

hw
yo

l

Rh
eo

lw
r 

Ym
ch

w
ilio

 
Cy

no
rt

hw
yo

l

Rh
eo

lw
r 

Ym
ch

w
ilio

 
Cy

no
rt

hw
yo

l

                                   Atodiad 2 

Y Strwythur Sefydliadol er Mehefin 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 

1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae 

Pencoed 

CF35   5LJ 

 

Ffôn:      01656 641150 

Ffacs:    01656 641199 

E-bost:    holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk 

Dilynwch ni ar Twitter: @Ombwdsmon 

Tudalen y pecyn 24

mailto:holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 25

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



TAXREP 41/15 
(ICAEW REPRESENTATION 

 115/15) 
 
 

 
 
 

 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales  T  
Chartered Accountants’ Hall F  
Moorgate Place   London EC2R 6EA   UK E  
icaew.com/taxfac 

 
 
Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 2015  
 
 
ICAEW welcomes the opportunity to comment on the Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 
published by the Welsh Government on 13 July 2015. 
 
This response of 7 September 2015 has been prepared on behalf of ICAEW jointly by the Tax 
Faculty and the ICAEW’s Director for Wales, supported by input from a working party of members 
based in Wales. 
 
The Tax Faculty is a leading authority on taxation and internationally recognised as a source of 
expertise. It is responsible for making submissions to tax authorities on behalf of ICAEW and does 
this with support from over 130 volunteers, many of whom are well-known names in the tax world. 
Appendix 1 sets out the ICAEW Tax Faculty’s Ten Tenets for a Better Tax System, by which we 
benchmark proposals for changes to the tax system. 
 
 
Contents 
 

 
Paragraphs 

Introduction 
Specific comments on the Bill  
Other comments 

1 – 4 
5 – 17 

18 – 19  
 

 
 

 

Ten Tenets for a Better Tax System Appendix 1 

 
 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(4)-21-15 P3

Tudalen y pecyn 34

Eitem 7



 

2 

ICAEW is a world-leading professional accountancy body. We operate under a Royal Charter, 
working in the public interest. ICAEW’s regulation of its members, in particular its responsibilities in 
respect of auditors, is overseen by the UK Financial Reporting Council. We provide leadership and 
practical support to over 142,000 member chartered accountants in more than 160 countries, 
working with governments, regulators and industry in order to ensure that the highest standards 
are maintained. 
 
ICAEW members operate across a wide range of areas in business, practice and the public sector. 
They provide financial expertise and guidance based on the highest professional, technical and 
ethical standards. They are trained to provide clarity and apply rigour, and so help create long-term 
sustainable economic value. 

 

Copyright © ICAEW 2015 
All rights reserved. 
 
This document may be reproduced without specific permission, in whole or part, free of charge and 
in any format or medium, subject to the conditions that: 
 

 it is appropriately attributed, replicated accurately and is not used in a misleading context;  
 the source of the extract or document is acknowledged and the title and ICAEW reference 

number are quoted. 
 
Where third-party copyright material has been identified application for permission must be made to 
the copyright holder. 
 
For more information, please contact ICAEW Tax Faculty:  
 
icaew.com 

Tudalen y pecyn 35

http://www.icaew.com/


ICAEW TAXREP 41/15: Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 2015 

3 

Introduction 
1. We welcome the opportunity to comment on the Bill introduced on 13 July 2015. We will also 

be happy to present these points orally or expand upon them in writing if requested.  
 
2. We are pleased to see that the majority of our previous advice and recommendations have 

been incorporated into the Bill and wish to acknowledge the open and effective way in which 
the Welsh Government has conducted its development fully taking into account the views 
expressed through the various consultation processes it has adopted.  

 
3. We consider that the devolvement of these taxes has provided the Welsh Government with a 

real opportunity to review their relevance and appropriateness to Wales and to improve the 
efficiency of tax collection through simplification wherever possible. To date it has been evident 
that these objectives are being pursued and we will continue to support Welsh Ministers in this 
endeavour. 

 
4. We welcome the drafting of the Bill so that all of the substantive provisions are included in the 

body of the Bill rather than relegated to Schedules. This aids clarity and we recommend this 
approach should always be adopted in future Bills. 

 
 

Specific comments on the Bill 
 
Part 2, Welsh Revenue Authority (WRA)  
 

5. We support the development of a Board to oversee the performance of the WRA made up of a 
majority of non-executive members, one of whom will be Chair. It is critical that these non-
executive members have both the skills and the knowledge to provide appropriate governance 
for the WRA and therefore include those with a strong understanding of taxation, business 
processes and the economy in particular. 
 

6. We are pleased to note the ability of the WRA to establish committees and sub committees to 
fulfil its functions which can include individuals who are not members of the Board. This will 
allow the WRA to supplement the skills and knowledge of the Board members themselves to 
ensure a greater coverage and understanding of the effect, or potential effect, of their work and 
gather more directly the views of those involved in business and the economy as a whole. 
 

7. We are disappointed that in clause 11 of the bill covering primary responsibilities there is no 
mention of ensuring a “quality” service to the public and Government. Whilst this section 
requires an efficient and effective complaints and disputes procedure there is no mention of 
the same for the collection and management systems. It is our view the primary responsibilities 
should include the development of efficient and effective tax collection systems (whether 
operated directly or indirectly) which are user friendly for the taxpayer and simple in operation 
and regulation. The objective of which would be to encourage and maximise the collection of 
taxes and minimises the opportunity for avoidance or evasion or disputes and appeals. 
 

8. It may be implicit in para 2(a) of clause 11 but we consider it should be explicit that the WRA 
has a role to provide Welsh Ministers with an independent assessment of the effects of any 
policies which they may adopt that may affect tax collection. They should also provide 
feedback of the actual effects of policies adopted through a formal reporting mechanism.   
 

9. Para 2(b) of clause 11 is a key role and perhaps requires some expansion regarding the main 
objectives of this function. Maximising taxpayer’s acceptance of the regulations and 
compliance to the rules is, in our view, a primary function of the WRA. Consequently it should 
have a duty to “ensure” the information provided is appropriate and sufficient for these 
purposes and also that it conducts appropriate consultation when seeking to introduce new 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



ICAEW TAXREP 41/15: Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 2015 

4 

regulation or changes to the tax system. Once again this is well covered for penalties but not 
for the core tax collection system. 

 
Clause 16 et seq, Confidentiality of Taxpayer’s Information 

 
10. This topic is comprehensively covered but the issue of consent in clause 17 1(a) does need to 

be tightened up to define exactly what constitutes consent. If this is not done then disputes 
may arise regarding the evidence or otherwise that consent has been given. 
 

11. Where disclosure is made without consent under the other listed permitted situations, we 
believe that there should there be a duty to advise the taxpayer of this action and the reasons 
why. 

 
12. Similarly, we believe it should it be a requirement that the duty of confidentiality is passed onto 

and accepted by the receiving organisation or individual where appropriate. 
 
Clause 22, Funding 
 

13. Clause 22(1) appears to give Welsh Ministers the ability to withdraw funding from WRA without 
any notice or consultation. Surely this is not the intention. This clause should be amended to 
clarify that it is Welsh Ministers who will decide the funding provided to the WRA but that this 
would be normally subject to a specific procedure. e.g. an annual basis and after consultation 
and discussion with the WRA itself. Also, if there is to be a major reduction in funding, the Bill 
should set out clear procedures and consultation processes to be followed.  
 
Clause 23, Rewards  
 

14. Clause 23 gives power for the WRA to pay a reward to a person in return for a service which 
relates to any of its functions. It is not entirely clear as to who might receive such an award as 
compared to, for example, remuneration or payment for services rendered. We would welcome 
clarification as to the extent of this power and where it would be appropriate to apply it.  
 
Clause 25, Taxpayers’ charter 
 

15. We support the inclusion of a Taxpayers’ Charter that sets out the rights and responsibilities of 
both taxpayers and WRA. 
 

16. We believe that a Charter should aim to do more than merely reflect aspirations about how 
HMRC should behave and what service standards taxpayers might expect. We believe that 
good tax compliance is encouraged by an efficient and effective tax administration service and 
the Charter should reflect this commitment. It needs to have some practical value and a 
reasonable set of service standards and behaviours that taxpayers can use and rely upon in 
their dealings with the revenue authority. 
 
Part 8,  Reviews & Appeals 
 

17. As stated previously we anticipate a role of the WRA will be to make the collection system and 
tax regulations user friendly to the taxpayer and thereby minimise the level of necessary 
reviews or appeals against the tax payable. Some measure of performance should be put in 
place regarding disputes which demonstrates the WRA’s success or otherwise in this area. 
 

18. We welcome the statement in the Explanatory notes which states “The WRA will seek to get 
things right first time, working collaboratively with taxpayers, communicating clearly and 
effectively and providing appropriate explanations of decisions.” We are not sure this aspiration 
is truly reflected in the Bill itself and believe the wording should be amended to reflect this 
aspiration more clearly.  

  

Tudalen y pecyn 37



ICAEW TAXREP 41/15: Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 2015 

5 

 
 

Other comments 
 
Service standards 

19. It is essential that WRA puts customer service and efficient delivery at the heart of its process 
designs and implementation. The Welsh Government might wish to consider, for example, 
whether it would be appropriate to be seen to have a more local presence that taxpayers could 
access when they had problems.  
 

20. We believe it is important that whatever approach is adopted and whoever provides the actual 
management and operation of the taxes (whether by WRA or a subcontractor), there should be 
a clear level of agreed service standards. If any operations are subcontracted such standards 
should be built in to any agreement. 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



ICAEW TAXREP 41/15: Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 2015 

6 

APPENDIX 1 
 
ICAEW TAX FACULTY’S TEN TENETS FOR A BETTER TAX SYSTEM 
 
The tax system should be: 
 
1. Statutory: tax legislation should be enacted by statute and subject to proper democratic 

scrutiny by Parliament. 
 
2. Certain: in virtually all circumstances the application of the tax rules should be certain. It 

should not normally be necessary for anyone to resort to the courts in order to resolve how 
the rules operate in relation to his or her tax affairs. 

 
3. Simple: the tax rules should aim to be simple, understandable and clear in their objectives. 
 
4. Easy to collect and to calculate: a person’s tax liability should be easy to calculate and 

straightforward and cheap to collect. 
 
5. Properly targeted: when anti-avoidance legislation is passed, due regard should be had to 

maintaining the simplicity and certainty of the tax system by targeting it to close specific 
loopholes. 

 
6. Constant: Changes to the underlying rules should be kept to a minimum. There should be a 

justifiable economic and/or social basis for any change to the tax rules and this justification 
should be made public and the underlying policy made clear. 

 
7. Subject to proper consultation: other than in exceptional circumstances, the Government 

should allow adequate time for both the drafting of tax legislation and full consultation on it. 
 
8. Regularly reviewed: the tax rules should be subject to a regular public review to determine 

their continuing relevance and whether their original justification has been realised. If a tax 
rule is no longer relevant, then it should be repealed. 

 
9. Fair and reasonable: the revenue authorities have a duty to exercise their powers 

reasonably. There should be a right of appeal to an independent tribunal against all their 
decisions. 

 
10. Competitive: tax rules and rates should be framed so as to encourage investment, capital 

and trade in and with the UK. 
 
These are explained in more detail in our discussion document published in October 1999 as 
TAXGUIDE 4/99 (see icaew.com/en/technical/tax/tax-
faculty/~/media/Files/Technical/Tax/Tax%20news/TaxGuides/TAXGUIDE-4-99-Towards-a-Better-tax-system.ashx ) 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 39

http://www.icaew.com/en/technical/tax/tax-faculty/~/media/Files/Technical/Tax/Tax%20news/TaxGuides/TAXGUIDE-4-99-Towards-a-Better-tax-system.ashx
http://www.icaew.com/en/technical/tax/tax-faculty/~/media/Files/Technical/Tax/Tax%20news/TaxGuides/TAXGUIDE-4-99-Towards-a-Better-tax-system.ashx


 

 

 
Written Evidence from ACCA on 

the Tax Collection and 
Management (Wales) Bill  

 
About ACCA 
ACCA (the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) is the global 
body for professional accountants. We aim to offer business-relevant, first-
choice qualifications to people of application, ability and ambition around the 
world who seek a rewarding career in accountancy, finance and 
management. 

Founded in 1904, ACCA has consistently held unique core values: 
opportunity, diversity, innovation, integrity and accountability. We believe 
that accountants bring value to economies in all stages of development. We 
aim to develop capacity in the profession and encourage the adoption of 
consistent global standards. Our values are aligned to the needs of 
employers in all sectors and we ensure that, through our qualifications, we 
prepare accountants for business. We work to open up the profession to 
people of all backgrounds and remove artificial barriers to entry, ensuring 
that our qualifications and their delivery meet the diverse needs of trainee 
professionals and their employers. 

We support our 178,000 members and 455,000 students in 181 countries, 
helping them to develop successful careers in accounting and business, with 
the skills required by employers. We work through a network of 92 offices 
and centres and more than 7,110 Approved Employers worldwide, who 
provide high standards of employee learning and development. Through our 
public interest remit, we promote appropriate regulation of accounting and 
conduct relevant research to ensure accountancy continues to grow in 
reputation and influence.  

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(4)-21-15 P4

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

Comments on the Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill 

 

1. The Assembly has an enviable opportunity to design a tax 
administration from scratch, offering the opportunity to learn from the 
successes and mistakes of existing administrations not just in the UK 
but elsewhere. That said, the new administration will initially replace 
only a small aspect of the overall tax collection regime in Wales, and 
the existing authorities and administration will remain in place for the 
remaining taxes.  

2. It is likely that many of the taxpayers initially affected will continue to 
remain exposed to comparable taxes in England, and so there is 
much to commend the approach of following closely the existing 
HMRC model and processes. Stability is a key feature of a good tax 
system, and change should be carefully managed and imposed only 
where a clear benefit will accrue.  

3. One feature of the legislation which should permeate the whole of the 
WRA’s activities is the code of values embodied in the Charter. The 
discussion of the Charter and its content and publication in the 
Explanatory Memorandum is encouraging both in tone and content as 
to the Assembly’s goals.  

4. In order to have the maximum impact it will be important that the 
Charter is freely available and well publicised for all those who may 
come into contact with the WRA or its delegated agents in the 
exercise of its functions (as to which, see below under “Digital by 
Default”).  

5. It is not currently explicit in the Bill that the Charter will be binding on 
delegated agents. It should be, and this should be made clear.  

6. More fundamentally, the legislation is silent on whether there is any 
oversight of the content of or compliance with the Charter. At the very 
least, the obligation to lay the Charter before the Assembly should 
include some scope for the Assembly to indicate its approval, or 
otherwise, of the Charter.  

7. Guidance, and legislation, should be designed with unrepresented 
taxpayers in mind. While exceptionally a tax levied only on 
businesses with significant levels of turnover or employees might be 
reasonably expected to impact only a relatively sophisticated taxpayer 
base, all other powers, and in particular penalty and investigation 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 

policies, will be relevant to any possible taxpayer, and must 
accordingly be drafted with the unrepresented and unsophisticated 
taxpayer in mind.  

8. If for some reason the underlying legislation cannot be drafted in 
clear, simple language then the WRA must undertake to provide 
complete, clear and unambiguous guidance which will make the 
content accessible to an unrepresented taxpayer.  

9. Brevity is not the same thing as simplicity. Leaving things out to keep 
the message simple will be counterproductive in the long run. 

10. Detail relating to exceptions may well be better positioned in 
supplementary pages, but its existence, and importance, must be 
clearly signposted for those to whom it is relevant 

11. One important aspect of the administration of taxes is the cost of 
collection. Whether delegated or otherwise, it is generally the case 
that a tax should raise more than the costs of its administration. It is 
not clear from the Bill whether a measure which cost more to 
administer than it raised would necessarily be within the lawful powers 
of the WRA.  

12. The difficulties would be compounded where administration of the tax 
had been delegated. Could the WRA lawfully delegate a tax which it 
knew would cost more to administer than it would raise? And what 
would be the consequences and responsibilities if it became apparent 
after the event that the costs of the delegated agent exceeded the 
revenue collected?  

13. It should be noted in this context that the delegated agents’ 
remuneration should not be based on the actual collections made. We 
would welcome explicit confirmation of this in the primary legislation.  

14. Effective and constructive engagement with all affected parties in the 
creation of the tax system will be crucial to taxpayer confidence and 
engagement. ACCA would welcome the exploration by the WRA of 
alternative methodologies for more fully exploring the impact of new 
taxes on all those affected, both directly and indirectly. The TIIN 
model may serve as a useful basis for such an exercise, although 
reservations have been noted about its implementation in some 
instances, so the opportunity should be taken to try to improve 
execution.  

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 

15. Again however, this is an exercise which cannot be undertaken 
cheaply, and a fully integrated consultation and impact assessment 
process is likely to impose an initial cost in the development of new 
taxes and administrative processes. With full and effective monitoring 
of the costs of a tax throughout its life, the benefits of such a model 
would hopefully be demonstrated to a level such that the process be 
adopted in turn by the other UK tax administrations.  

 

Board Structure and staffing 

16. One departure from the HMRC model is in the appointment of a 
Board rather than use of the Commissioners model. Accountability, 
along with transparency, is a principle to which all good tax systems 
should aspire. The Bill furthers that aim by adopting a model which 
will be comparatively familiar to anyone with a background in 
corporate affairs.  

17. ACCA welcomes the inclusion of significant non-executive 
membership of the Board, and would further welcome minimum 
experience requirements in respect of the makeup of the non-
executive membership.  

18. The creation of non-voting subcommittees with scope to investigate 
and receive evidence from experts in particular fields, as well as other 
stakeholders, will enable the WRA to make informed decisions about 
the future shape and direction of the Welsh tax system.  

19. Access to subject specific expertise through subcommittees will be 
invaluable even to general tax experts, but it will be important to 
ensure that those voting on the future shape of the administration of 
taxes in Wales have a suitably rounded and well informed view of the 
issues facing both taxpayers and the authority in dealing with tax 
issues. The Board will be supervising a practical day to day 
administrative authority, and will need the practical knowledge of how 
such systems do or don’t work in practice if it is to do the best job for 
Wales.  

20. The wider staffing of the WRA will be fundamental to its long term 
success. A well trained and effective staff can operate to overcome 
many of the difficulties which might arise as a consequence of 
incompletely developed legislation or unexpected consequences. By 
contrast, no matter how buoyant the economy, a demotivated, 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 

undertrained or insufficiently experienced administration can derail the 
most carefully structured of tax systems.  

Delegation of Powers 

21. The confirmation in s13 that WRA will retain responsibility for all 
delegated operations is welcome. Likewise, the obligation on the 
WRA to publish details of the delegated operations will be an 
important element in supporting public confidence. The level of detail 
to be published will be subject to separate regulation, but one aspect 
which should be explicit is that the collection and enforcement of 
taxes should not be remunerated on a “by results” basis. Setting the 
prices for such delegation will undoubtedly be challenging, but public 
confidence in the system will be increased with transparency and 
accountability.  

22. The likelihood that delegated taxes will be operated by HMRC staff 
who are familiar with HMRC processes should be borne in mind when 
designing such powers and processes. 

23. The delegation of powers could extend to activities such as debt 
collection, and should of course be restricted to competent authorities 
and actors. However, no such condition is explicit in the Bill. Imposing 
such a condition and requiring the WRA to confirm satisfaction before 
appointment of delegates would firstly reduce the likelihood of any 
inappropriate appointment being made, and secondly clarify the 
process and responsibilities after the event should such an 
appointment be made.  

Report and Accounts 

24. The timescale for preparation of the Annual Report, Annual Accounts 
and Tax Statement should be aligned, given the interdependence of 
the three documents. While “as soon as reasonably practicable” is a 
good target, this should even so be subject to a back stop deadline 
correspondent to the Tax Statement and Accounts.  

25. Responding to changes in the external environment and managing 
the change that enforces is a key element in maintaining a good tax 
system, and budgets timetables and staffing must be set with that in 
mind. Cotemporaneous publication of the Annual Report, Annual 
Accounts and Annual Tax Statement would give a clear focus for both 
the WRA and its stakeholders on how to plan actions.  

Powers – penalties and investigations 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 

26. Secondary/primary legislation: The use of secondary legislation offers 
many benefits to the legislature, but must be subject to certain limits. 
In particular, certain aspects of tax legislation should be retained in 
primary legislation only, to ensure the proper transparency and 
scrutiny. 

27. In particular, the power of the state to investigate taxpayers and 
impose penalties on them on behalf of society must be subject to a 
proportionate degree of scrutiny. Such activities disrupt the normal 
balance between the rights of the individual and wider society, and 
should be subject to corresponding checks and balances.  

28. ACCA shares the concerns voiced by other respondents that the 
powers in draft clauses 17 (2), 154, 170 (7) and 183 (1)(2) would 
properly belong in primary, not secondary legislation.   

Digital Agenda  

29. The aspiration to “digital by default” has merits as a long term aim, but 
should not be imposed as a short term burden on taxpayers who are 
unable to reasonably comply. HMRC themselves may be best placed 
to advise another tax authority on how to manage its implementation, 
but it is important to note that the policy has suffered a number of 
challenges and defeats on points of principle and legal administration.  

30. A revenue authority does not have the luxury afforded to business of 
targeting only the most profitable customers and declining to serve 
those on the margins of economic effectiveness. Neither is it 
reasonable for the authority to externalise the costs of collection, and 
impose a double burden on those least able to bear it. The burden of 
a tax should be limited to the financial expense of paying it. Where the 
law imposes a charge then the authority must provide a reasonable 
and effective means to comply with that obligation at a proportionate 
cost. 

31. The digital by default agenda impacts upon tax administration in all 
three aspects of the delivery of tax policy – the dissemination of 
legislation and guidance; the process of calculation and return 
completion, and finally the payment or collection mechanisms for 
each tax.  

32. Access to legislation and guidance: On the one hand, digital delivery 
should allow for seamless presentation of both the underlying 
legislation and the user friendly guidance (or perhaps, for self-

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 

assessed taxes, in the opposite order). On the other hand, it must be 
remembered that not every taxpayer will have ready access to online 
sources of guidance or legislation, or feel comfortable using them. 
Guidance is there for the benefit of the taxpayer; it should be provided 
in the form in which the taxpayer will most easily be able to make use 
of it.  

33. Calculation and return submission: The advantages of electronic 
completion of returns and online submission can be significant, and 
as a matter of best practice should be embraced. However, the 
convenience of the administrative authority should not outweigh its 
responsibility to provide for the convenience of the tax payer. 
Controversial though some of Adam Smith’s other ideas may be, 
there can be little argument that careless use of the power to tax in a 
manner which fails to take account of the prevailing environment and 
consequently imposes unwarranted burdens on the very society 
which tax seeks to support is a failure to properly exercise that power.  

34. Payment: While offering the promise of speed and efficiency, online 
payment systems bring with them also security risks, in addition to the 
burden which compliance with such a regime can impose if the portals 
and protocols imposed by the authority are not suitable for the 
taxpaying public. Security is a further significant consideration. The 
authority should bear in mind the need to educate taxpayers if new 
processes are introduced with which they may not be familiar.  

 

 

For further Information, please contact: 

Ben Cottam  

Head of ACCA Cymru/Wales 

XXXXXXXX@uk.accaglobal.com  

+ 44 (0) XXX XXX XXXX 

Jason Piper 

Senior Manager, Tax and Business Law 

XXXXXXXX@accaglobal.com 

+ 44 (0) XXX XXX XXXX 

 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



Foundations for a sound 
tax system: simplicity, 
certainty and stability 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



ACCA (the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants) is the global body for professional 
accountants. We aim to offer business-relevant, first-
choice qualifications to people of application, ability 
and ambition around the world who seek a rewarding 
career in accountancy, finance and management.

Founded in 1904, ACCA has consistently held unique 
core values: opportunity, diversity, innovation, integrity 
and accountability. We believe that accountants bring 
value to economies in all stages of development. We 
aim to develop capacity in the profession and 
encourage the adoption of consistent global standards. 
Our values are aligned to the needs of employers in all 
sectors and we ensure that, through our qualifications, 
we prepare accountants for business. We work to open 
up the profession to people of all backgrounds and 
remove artificial barriers to entry, ensuring that our 
qualifications and their delivery meet the diverse needs 
of trainee professionals and their employers.

We support our 170,000 members and 436,000 students 
in 180 countries, helping them to develop successful 
careers in accounting and business, with the skills 
needed by employers. We work through a network of 92 
offices and centres and more than 8,500 Approved 
Employers worldwide, who provide high standards of 
employee learning and development.

© The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants  
June 2015

About ACCA

Simplicity, certainty and 
stability: in ACCA’s view 
these are the three 
cornerstones of a good 
tax system.  
 
Policy makers should 
consider them any time 
they plan to change the 
tax system. They are 
also the benchmarks by 
which taxpayers can 
assess the effectiveness 
of government in 
maintaining and 
improving tax systems. 

This paper references three earlier ACCA papers.

 � Stability in Tax
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-
resources-search/2015/may/stability-in-tax.html

 � Certainty in Tax
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-
resources-search/2014/november/certainty-in-tax.html

 � Simplicity in Tax
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-
resources-search/2013/november/simplicity-in-the-tax-system.html

Tudalen y pecyn 48

http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-resources-search/2015/may/stability-in-tax.html
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-resources-search/2015/may/stability-in-tax.html
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-resources-search/2014/november/certainty-in-tax.html
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-resources-search/2014/november/certainty-in-tax.html
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-resources-search/2013/november/simplicity-in-the-tax-system.html
http://www.accaglobal.com/gb/en/technical-activities/technical-resources-search/2013/november/simplicity-in-the-tax-system.html


3

Tax should exist to 
create benefits for 
society, not be a 
burden upon it.

1. Introduction

Tax systems are fundamental to society. They are the conduit through 
which the state gathers the resources it needs to support public 
spending, and are often the direct mechanism of implementing policy. 
Every citizen is affected by the operation of tax systems, and the 
efficiency and effectiveness of the system and its administration will 
have effects far beyond the direct impact of tax collection. 

Tax systems have grown ever more complex, reflecting the societies and 
economies in which they operate. As the world changes around them, 
tax systems must change to keep up. The arrival of the container, the 
executive jet and the internet have changed the face of world trade and 
domestic economies beyond all recognition. The enhanced mobility of 
goods, people and capital has transformed societies but the importance 
of tax in maintaining those societies is undiminished.

The three functions of a tax system (revenue raising, redistribution and 
regulation of economic behaviour) will be achieved in different ways at 
different times. As policy makers react to change, and seek to influence 
it themselves, they will be faced with choices over what to tax, and how 
to do so. 

ACCA has identified three fundamental considerations which every 
system should strive for, and by which citizens can measure the success 
of governments and tax administrations in developing laws and 
processes, and the resources to administer them, for the greatest benefit 
of society. Regardless of the policies adopted by government, the role of 
the tax system in funding or implementing them should be designed to 
best reflect the optimal balance between simplicity, certainty and 
stability. 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



4

Complexity costs: it 
distorts behaviour and 
wastes resources.

Taxes must also be calculated and 
assessed, which can happen in a variety of 
ways (eg by paper forms or online) and at 
different periods (eg annually, quarterly or 
on an ad-hoc basis). Collection methods 
also differ. For example, with transactional 
taxes, it often isn’t the taxpayer who 
remits the tax to the authorities (as with 
VAT and income tax on employment 
earnings).

Economic growth appears to be more 
strongly linked with reducing the 
administrative burden on business than 
with cutting tax rates. 

Taxpayers face even more complexity 
when operating across multiple 
jurisdictions, which may apply rules in 
different ways and have different tax rates. 

WHAT ARE THE ADVANTAGES OF 
SIMPLIFICATION?

ACCA believes that a commitment to 
achieving simplicity in the tax system will 
produce the following benefits:

•	 reduced cost of administration;

•	 greater accountability through clarity 
and transparency; and 

•	 improved stability, because the 
potential for unintended consequences 
and need for counteracting measures 
are reduced.

It’s also notable that reducing the 
administrative burden on business 
appears to be more strongly linked with 
economic growth than cutting tax rates.

2. Simplicity 

Understanding and complying with tax 
legislation should be as simple and 
straightforward as possible.1 If taxpayers 
and their advisers face too complex a tax 
system and are unclear what is expected 
of them, this creates the potential for 
mistakes and deliberate rule-breaking. 
Complexity in the tax system distorts the 
economy, diverting productive energies 
into non-productive administration. 

WHY IS TAX SO COMPLICATED?

Tax systems can perform multiple roles: 
raising revenue, redistributing wealth and 
regulating behaviour (eg through excise 
duty on alcohol or ‘green taxes’). These 
roles may be achieved in several ways: by 
taxing spending (eg through value added 
tax (VAT) or goods and services tax (GST)), 
receipts (personal or corporate income) or 
capital. Single taxes may be intended to 
support more than one aim.

Implementing tax also has complexity: 
even when based on legislation, 
supplementary guidance or case law may 
be required. Tax authorities, taxpayers 
and advisers will interpret the rules – not 
necessarily in the same ways. 

In practice, much of the complexity 
experienced by taxpayers and advisers 
stems from policy implementation: 
confusing paperwork, ambiguous or 
inconsistent legislation and dysfunctional 
bureaucratic processes. Additional 
complexities are created when 
governments are tempted to grant 
exemptions for certain taxpayers or draft 
anti-avoidance legislation.2 

Anti-avoidance legislation requires 
taxpayers to keep up-to-date with 
targeted rules, or to ‘second guess’ the 
intentions of the legislature when trying to 
understand the tax impact of transactions.

1  See Simplicity in Tax (ACCA 2013).

2  See Global policy on Taxation of Companies: 
Principles and Practices (ACCA 2013). for further 
discussion of the complexity of tax avoidance.

Tudalen y pecyn 50



Foundations for a sound tax system: simplicity, certainty and stability 5

HOW CAN GREATER SIMPLICITY BE 
ACHIEVED?

Technology can play a part in reducing the 
administrative burden on business, by 
enabling online filing, reducing the need 
for repeated taxpayer input, and even 
removing the human element from data 
input altogether. Many jurisdictions now 
base filings on accounts prepared in XBRL 
(Extensible Business Reporting Language) 
which is easily readable by other software. 

Simplicity can be encouraged by 
restricting adjustments to standards-
compliant accounting when preparing tax 
computations. Where adjustments are 
necessary, these should be specified as 
clearly as possible.

Drafting simpler tax legislation doesn’t 
necessarily mean shorter legislation. It 
also needs to be usable and 
understandable. This is particularly 
important in countries where taxpayers 
self-assess their liability and will be the 
primary users of the legislation. 

The most fundamental driver of simplicity 
(or complexity) in a tax system is the 
intended function of tax. A system 
designed purely to raise revenue is more 
likely to be simple, as the only design 
constraints are neutrality and efficiency. 
Mechanisms that introduce choices for 
taxpayers, and taxes designed to 
influence behaviour, are more likely to 
increase complexity.

Policy makers should try not to make any 
one tax do too many things, and should 
not use too many different taxes to try to 
achieve the same aim – for example, 

corporate income taxes get used to raise 
revenue, to redistribute corporate profits 
from the wealthy (the business owners 
who would otherwise ultimately benefit 
from the surplus), and to regulate business 
activity, through eg enhanced deductions 
for installing ‘environmentally friendly’ 
plant and machinery. Introducing the 
various targeted aims inevitably results in 
complication. And then there is the 
overlap; direct levies on carbon use or 
energy consumption have similar aims to 
the ‘green’ elements of corporation tax. 
Operating two systems with the same aim 
needs to be carefully considered if 
governments are to avoid waste and 
complexity in their tax collection regimes.

The number of tax rules, and 
their ability to interact (or even 
conflict) with each other, 
should be kept to a minimum.

Note that the concept of fairness doesn’t 
necessarily align with simplicity. The 
simpler and less granular a tax system, the 
less finely it will be able to differentiate 
between the circumstances of different 
taxpayers. A flat tax is theoretically the 
ultimate in simplicity, but has no 
‘progressive’ element. 

In general, to encourage simplicity, the 
number of tax rules, and their ability to 
interact (or conflict) with each other, 
should be kept to a minimum. 

Tax law and tax administration 
should be simple. Society as a 
whole pays the price for 
complexity. 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



6

Chapter opening boxCertainty in a tax system is 
important. Without it 
neither governments nor 
taxpayers can effectively 
budget or plan for their 
future actions. 

Certainty in a tax system is important 
because without it neither governments 
nor taxpayers can effectively budget or 
plan for their future actions. Yet every 
system incorporates uncertainty to some 
degree, and it may even be encouraged.

BENEFITS OF CERTAINTY 

Policy makers need to be able to base 
future spending plans on a realistic 
assessment of expected income. 
Certainty also benefits taxpayers. It helps 
them choose between alternative 
transactions, and to decide whether to 
proceed with an individual transaction. 

Where there is uncertainty over the tax 
position of a transaction, prudent 
taxpayers may reserve funds against the 
potential liability, restricting additional 
investment and so creating an opportunity 
cost. Where uncertainty leads to disputes 
between taxpayer and tax authority, the 
direct and indirect costs can be 
considerable.  

HOW UNCERTAINTY CAN ARISE

Uncertainty can develop at any stage of 
the tax-assessment cycle – when 
identifying tax transactions, valuing them 
and applying tax law to them. The threat 
of retrospective legislation is particularly 
devastating, generally reserved by 
governments to counter clear abuse.

Corporation taxes are typically based on 
an adjusted value of published accounting 
profit, but that may rely on subjective 
valuations. In addition, the same concept 
– such as depreciation (gradual writing 
down of the cost of an asset to reflect its 
use) – may be applied differently under 
accounting and tax rules. The same 
transaction may also have a different tax 
treatment depending on who makes it. 

A purposive interpretation of legislation 
– where tax law is to be applied in line 
with its intended purpose – creates 
uncertainty. This is particularly 

demonstrated by the general anti-
avoidance, or anti-abuse, rule – a 
principles-based approach designed to 
protect society from unacceptable tax 
avoidance, but an inevitable cause of 
uncertainty. 

The involvement of the judiciary in 
interpreting tax law also has an impact. 
Judicial precedent can change overnight, 
while the appeals system and potential for 
multiple opinions can cause additional 
uncertainty for taxpayers.

The treaty-based system of international 
tax (which follows legal form to allocate 
tax characteristics) has created some 
uncertainty for international businesses, 
which some managers or owners have 
exploited. However, the alternative (a 
unitary tax model) would introduce 
different uncertainties. Instead of taxing 
each company’s locally accounted profits, 
the system would tax a proportion of the 
whole (global) profits of the business on 
the basis of the proportion of its sales, 
assets and labour recorded in the 
jurisdiction.3 

Resolving uncertainty is a poor 
second best to avoiding it in the 
first place

ABUSE OF UNCERTAINTY

Abuse of uncertainty poses risks to the 
exchequer. Taxpayers may seek to use it 
to their advantage when interpreting tax 
law, while tax officials may also seek an 
undue advantage, for themselves or the 
state. Corrupt tax officials could, for 
example, attempt to impose excessive tax 
demands in the hope of receiving a bribe. 

Extending discretion to tax authorities to 
‘do a deal’ poses a further risk to the tax 
system in the form of undisclosed state 
aid. Such deals will typically be limited to 
the largest multinationals or wealthiest 
individuals, and could give them 
significant advantages through lower 
effective tax rates. 

3  See Certainty in Tax (ACCA 2014) for more 
explanation of the issues.

3. Certainty

Tudalen y pecyn 52



Foundations for a sound tax system: simplicity, certainty and stability 7

WHAT CAN POLICY MAKERS DO?

Policy makers need to understand the 
tension that exists between simplicity and 
certainty. The interests of larger 
businesses are better served by certainty, 
while individual taxpayers will require 
simplicity. The relative importance of 
simplicity and certainty to smaller 
businesses will depend on their aims, 
activities and resources. Designers of tax 
systems need to reach a compromise 
between conflicting needs. 

Limiting the damage done by 
uncertainty should be a 
primary objective of tax system 
designers

Where governments use administrative or 
judicial discretion in the tax system, clear 
guidance will be needed. For large 
businesses, transparent clearance 
mechanisms allowing taxpayers to discuss 
proposed transactions in advance could 
help to address any uncertainties arising 
when interpreting legislation. 

Agreeing consistent treatments 
for cross-border transactions is 
key to confident international 
trade

DELIBERATE UNCERTAINTY

In some cases taxpayers seek to introduce 
uncertainty deliberately, eg through an 
artificial avoidance scheme based on a 
tenuous interpretation of the law or facts. 
In practice, uncertainty usually results 
from the tax and accounting system failing 
to capture the reality of a transaction 
clearly. 

Taxpayers cannot be expected to avoid all 
such areas of uncertainty. Managers of a 
business have duties to protect the 
interests of the owners and other direct 
stakeholders in the business, which may 
exceed their legal duties to wider society.   

Any objectively certain tax regime would 
have to consider every possible 
transaction and interaction, making it far 
too complex. Once governments accept 
some circumstance-based uncertainty is 
unavoidable, they may be tempted to 
extend the boundaries of uncertainty 
deliberately. They may expect prudent 
taxpayers to wish to minimise tax risk and 
so pay more tax in order to be sure of 
escaping challenge. Such actions by 
government are just as open to criticism 
as actions of taxpayers seeking to exploit 
uncertainty through aggressive avoidance 
schemes.

Tudalen y pecyn 53



8

Chapter opening boxIf uncertainty about tax is 
going to stand in the way of 
projects that would 
otherwise benefit society 
then it has failed in its 
objective.

4. Stability

Stability is closely related to certainty. 
‘Certainty’ is about knowing what the 
answer to a given question ought to be; 
stability is about whether the current 
answer will still be correct in one, two or 
ten years’ time. Stability extends to the 
rates at which calculated values are taxed 
and the administrative practices 
surrounding that process in a way that 
certainty does not.

WHY STABILITY MATTERS

For taxpayers, stability is essential for 
effective planning and efficient ongoing 
compliance. Individuals can budget 
household income more accurately, while 
businesses are encouraged to make 
investment decisions. Businesses would 
typically prefer to operate in a slightly 
more imperfect system than in one where 
incremental improvements are made 
every year. 

If uncertainty about tax is going 
to stand in the way of projects 
that would otherwise benefit 
society then it has failed in its 
objective.

Stability is particularly important for 
enabling investment in large infrastructure 
and development projects, as businesses 
need reassurance that the tax rules won’t 
change part way through. Concerns about 
the stability of a tax system will be 
reflected in the overall risk weighting give 
to new investments. 

TAX RATE STABILITY

Across most OECD nations, general 
consumption taxes (eg VAT) and personal 
income taxes generate most revenue, 
followed by corporate income taxes. The 
rates of such taxes need to be moved only 
minimally to generate a significant 
revenue impact. The number of changes 
can be kept to a minimum, and the burden 
spread across a comparatively wide base. 
Targeting a smaller population is likely to 
be more disruptive and divisive.

Stability is fundamental to 
effective planning and efficient 
compliance.

At a macro level, sudden shifts in tax rates 
can be bad for business and consumer 
confidence. When step changes are 
prompted by major events (eg war), the 
tax burden rarely falls back to its original 
level. Governments generally find new 
ways to spend the money.

TAX BASE STABILITY

Changing tax rules that affect the tax base 
has an economic and compliance cost. 
The more regular the change, the greater 
the cost. For smaller businesses in 
particular, large infrequent changes are 
generally preferable to successive small 
ones. 

The need for any change should always be 
considered carefully, as should the 
mechanics of implementing the change 
and its interaction with the rest of the tax 
system. Impact assessments are useful 
tools for legislators to model the 
outcomes of changes, but Policy makers 
must take account of real world 
conditions. The UK system of tax credits, 
for example, has merit as a model, but 
operational weaknesses.4 

TAX ADMINISTRATION STABILITY

The administration of tax systems changes 
as technologies change, bringing scope 
for greater efficiency and effectiveness. 
Nevertheless, system changes must 
always be made with care, particularly in 
relation to withholding mechanisms for 
employment taxes or consumption tax 
returns and processes. Successful change 
requires clear communication from the 
authorities and adequate time (for 
systems development and educating 
taxpayers).

Investment in the training and 
retention of staff at every level 
should be a priority.

4  See Stability in Tax (ACCA 2015) for more detail.

Tudalen y pecyn 54



Foundations for a sound tax system: simplicity, certainty and stability 9

Efforts should also be made to ensure that 
tax authorities are staffed with well 
trained, motivated individuals. This 
encourages higher quality tax 
administration, not least through the 
maintenance of institutional memory 
which can reduce the likelihood of 
repeated mistakes.    

THE WAY FORWARD

Change for the sake of it would be a bad 
thing in a tax system. Politicians and tax 
Policy makers should always think carefully 
about whether the tax system is the best 
way to achieve a desired change in 
society.  

Some political systems support a 
consensus model of decision making, 
which can enable a more stable and 
predictable tax system. Though politicians 
may lose some of their discretion to shape 
tax policy, society may benefit. A 
measured and well signposted 
programme of predictable change 
represents the optimal, pragmatic 
compromise.

Tax systems could benefit from some kind 
of independent oversight of tax policy and 
the effectiveness and efficiency of the 
system. This would reassure taxpayers and 
investors that non-partisan aspects of the 
tax system are not being compromised for 
short-term political ends. 

Mechanisms for change are an 
essential feature of any healthy 
system.

Greater consistency in cross border and 
internationally applicable taxes would also 
benefit taxpayers and authorities, 
reducing scope for disputes and 
arbitrage. Greater stability should be 
achieved as domestic authorities 
converge on common models. 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



10

Tax should exist to 
create benefits for 
society, not be a 
burden upon it.

5. Conclusion

Today’s world changes faster than most legislatures can update their tax 
law. Policy makers may need to accept short-term imperfections, while 
taking a measured approach to implementing genuine structural 
improvements which meet the principles of simplicity and certainty in a 
transparent and accountable way. 

A good tax system, like a simple stool, depends on three things for its 
strength and solidity. Simplicity, Certainty and Stability. And like a 
tripod, if any one of the legs is deficient, the whole thing is likely to fall 
over. The principles to some extent overlap and are interdependent. If 
the system is not simple, its impact is less likely to be certain. Breaking 
down the analysis of the system methodically is far more likely to create 
a consistent and coherent outcome that goes at least some way towards 
achieving the desired aims without any undesirable side-effects.

The balance of the factors will be different in different cases, but 
perhaps the key is simplicity; once that is in place, certainty and 
stability will flow as a natural consequence. Policy makers should try not 
to make any one tax do too many things, and should not use too many 
different taxes to try to achieve the same aim. Operating two systems 
with the same aim needs to be carefully considered if governments are 
to avoid waste and complexity in their tax collection regimes.

The importance of the tax system to individuals and society is so great 
that it should not be treated as a short-term political football, but seen 
instead as the bedrock of constitutional funding, and recognised as an 
integral and pervasive element of every business and individual’s 
environment. A good tax system will benefit both a government and its 
populace; a poor one will discomfit individuals and discourage business, 
with impacts far beyond the tax system itself.  

Tudalen y pecyn 56



11

Tudalen y pecyn 57



EA-TAX-FUNDAMENTALS

ACCA  29 Lincoln's Inn Fields  London  WC2A 3EE  United Kingdom / +44 (0)20 7059 5000 / www.accaglobal.com
Tudalen y pecyn 58

www.accaglobal.com


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 59

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

The Law Society of England and Wales 
 

1. The Law Society of England and Wales ("the Law Society") is the 
representative body for more than 166,000 solicitors in England and Wales. 
The Law Society negotiates on behalf of the profession, and lobbies 
regulators, government and others.  

 
2. The Law Society plays an active role in law reform, the effective operation of 

legal institutions and access to justice in England and Wales. The Law 
Society has specialist law committees including the tax law committee 
comprising 15 expert tax practitioners and the conveyancing and land law 
committee.  

 
3. The Law Society Wales Office delivers the Law Society's aims in Wales, 

working with Welsh institutions; influencing and responding to the devolution 
of law-making; and promoting and supporting the legal community in Wales. 
There is a dedicated Wales committee which includes academics and lay 
members as well as practitioners. 

 
 

Background 
 

4. The Welsh Government has engaged closely with experts and industry on the 
new tax regime for Wales, this has provided for issues to be raised and 
considered at an early stage. The open approach has allowed for 
consideration of legislation beyond the confines of a formal consultation 
procedure and civil servants are learning and developing. This close working 
will bear fruit when the individual taxes come to be enacted.  

5. The Welsh Government's intention has been to encourage business and has 
been open in its discourse on new Welsh taxes. In launching the Tax 
Collection and Management (Wales) Bill ("the Bill") the Minister for Finance 
and Government Business said "our tax arrangements for Wales are based 
on four clear principles – fairness; simplicity; supporting jobs and growth; and 
stability and certainty".1  

 
6. The Finance Committee's own pre-legislative inquiry has informed the 

process with regard to the foundations for Welsh taxes. 
 

7. As a representative body we have been closely involved with the groundwork 
for this new revenue function in Wales. We sit on the Finance Minister's Tax 
Advisory Group, have members on the Welsh Government's tax forums as 
well as on their specialist advisory groups. In terms of our discourse with 
members, we have engaged individually, in groups and through seminars. We 
use our own lines of communication to the profession through targeted 
mailings, weekly Professional Update reports and the Law Society's Gazette 
and are delivering this message to members across the jurisdiction in both 
Wales and England. 

 
8. The solicitors profession is adaptable, however, it is important in terms of our 

ability to ensure that members across both England and Wales are aware of 
the extent of devolution and also the impact of devolution, that we have clear 
messages coming from the Welsh Government, from the National Assembly 
for Wales and more broadly the media. 

 
  

                                                
1 Minister for Finance and Government Business Monday 13 July 2015 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(4)-21-15 P5

Tudalen y pecyn 65

Eitem 8

http://gov.wales/newsroom/finance1/2015/150710-landmark-bill/?lang=en


 

Overview of the Bill 
 

10. The Welsh Government is in a position where Scotland 'went first' so that the 
legislation to accommodate new devolved taxes has been drawn up within the 
UK very recently and as the Land and Buildings Transaction and Scottish 
Landfill taxes have already come into effect there is practical as well as 
legislative experience from which to learn.  

 
11. As the Bill draws on current UK legislation as well as Scottish provisions on 

the fundamental requirements for a Welsh tax regime the extent of 'novel' 
drafting is narrow. Our responses to Welsh Government consultations and 
evidence to the Finance Committee's own pre-legislative scrutiny set out our 
views on many of the provisions in the Bill and so are not repeated here.2   
 

12. This response does not focus on all the individual parts of the Bill as the 
provisions have been developed over time and many operate to replicate 
existing law. Below are observations on particular provisions and wider 
comments for the Finance Committee to consider. 

 
 

Welsh Revenue Authority 
 

13. The status and provisions or the Welsh revenue authority ("WRA") are 
welcomed. The main concerns relate to communication and scrutiny. 

 
14. The WRA's role and functions must be clear and clearly communicated. The 

WRA's identity and the brand for Welsh taxes must be made known to the 
public. This is important if an agent is appointed which is provided for in the 
Bill and is a particular issue if HM Revenue and Customs ("HMRC") acts as 
agent for WRA. HMRC could be dealing with the same tax payer but the 
relationship will be regulated by different provisions and charters. 

 
15. Looking at the scrutiny of WRA by the National Assembly for Wales ("NAW"), 

we would propose a formal process is put in place to ensure that that WRA is 
truly answerable. This could be accommodated through Standing Orders of 
the National Assembly or possibly better delivered through the inclusion of a 
set procedure in the Bill to ensure a robust and accessible process exists. 

 
16. Such a procedure could require direct accountability through a named NAW 

committee "where this new body would be expected to account for the way 
that it’s operated in a more transparent way" [para 97] as was discussed 
during our evidence session with the Finance Committee and this would be 
welcomed.3  

17. We think that it is important that a Taxpayer’s Charter is regarded as having 
some operational significance. So, for example, it is perceived by some UK 
taxpayers that, despite comments in the Charter operating in the UK, where 
they conduct particular lines of business they are assumed to be “dodging 
taxes” rather than assumed to be compliant with their obligations until 
demonstrated otherwise.  In addition it would be helpful if non-compliance 
with the Charter had an adverse impact on in relation to the operation of the 
WRA rather than just being seen to be aspirational. 
  

                                                
2 Response to White Paper pub. Feb 2015 and Record of Proceedings 29 April 2015. 
3 Record of Proceedings 29 April 2015 at para 97 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

http://gov.wales/docs/caecd/consultation/150206-devolved-collated-responses-v1.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s39688/29%20April%202015.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s39688/29%20April%202015.pdf


 

19. In its report the Finance Committee recommended that "stakeholders are 
represented on the board of the [WRA]" but there is no provision for this in the 
Bill.4   

20. In taking evidence on its inquiry the Finance Committee heard from the chief 
executive of Revenue Scotland that there is a "devolved tax collaborative" in 
Scotland and it may be appropriate to include statutory provision for a similar 
body in Wales.5   A tax professionals forum could be developed to scrutinise 
tax policy-making in Wales.   

Information 

21. Effective information governance will be of paramount importance not only for 
efficient administration but also to protect the confidentiality of sensitive data. 
As the Poynter Review of information security at HMRC and the Cabinet 
Office Data Handling Procedure in Government Final Report both made clear 
in the wake of the HMRC data breach in 2007 when two discs containing 
personal details of all UK families claiming child benefit went missing, 
information governance has in the past been relatively neglected. The 
establishment of the WRA is an opportunity to apply best practice from the 
outset.  

Penalties 

22. It needs to be recognised that there are clear tensions in designing an 
effective tax system and yet manage to develop high quality administrative 
services that support tax collection. Despite a lot of adverse comment in 
newspapers, the UK benefits from a very high rate of voluntary compliance, 
perhaps encouraged by sanctions, but in general the level of compliance has 
not markedly increased as a result of additional penalties, etc.  

 
23. The major areas of concern with the current UK penalty regime are:- 

 
 penalties arising for taxpayers when they could not have known they 

were in default; 
 time based or other penalties which have the effect of deterring rather 

than encouraging compliance; and 
 a system with very little flexibility which is not tailored to a taxpayer's 

needs and so which does not promote compliance. 

24. The level of penalties should not be set such as to, in practice, “encourage” a 
taxpayer to concede a case where there is a good argument but the risk of 
the level of penalties makes it impracticable to consider an appeal. The level 
of penalties are noted. 

 
25. In addition, HMRC has recently issued a discussion document on penalties. 

HMRC are placing their review of the penalty regime firmly in the context of 
their digital plans, which it is said will make it easier for taxpayers to comply 
with their tax obligations and allow the use of more accurate data across all 
taxes and this is informing their policy moving forward. See further below 
regarding keeping pace with UK legislation. 
  

                                                
4 Finance Committee Report May 2015 
5 Record of Proceedings 29 April 2015 

Tudalen y pecyn 67

http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld10214/cr-ld10214-e.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s39688/29%20April%202015.pdf


 

Tax Tribunal 

27. We agree with the proposed approach to use the existing Ministry of Justice 
administered two-tier tax tribunal system as it is important that taxpayers have 
access to an effective form of appeal and the tribunals will continue to be 
relevant for other taxes applicable in Wales.  

 
 

Secondary Legislation 
 

28. The powers for the Welsh Government to make regulations under both the 
affirmative and negative procedures in this Bill are extensive. Although NAW 
has looked to appoint a specialist adviser it may be more appropriate to 
establish a committee of experts. The level of input required to advise on the 
Bills to accommodate the two proposed taxes added to the operational 
regulations and the Charter in due course is likely to be beyond that of an 
individual.  

 
 

Further Comments 

29. The Bill does not set out any general provisions for tax avoidance and 
therefore we assume provisions, if any, will be included in the legislation for 
individual taxes.  

30. Stamp duty land tax only came into effect in 2003. Since this time there has 
been some bedding in and in order to ensure that the right people were 
engaged with that process the stamp duty land tax working together 
stakeholder group was established. The group includes professional bodies, 
tax law specialists and advisers, as well as internal agencies, HMRC and 
Government representatives. This group doesn't deal with individual issues or 
cases, but, is concerned with the operation of the tax which has been useful 
for all those working within what was for everyone a new regime and in terms 
of online activity was developing at the same time. 

 
31. Finally, regarding consistency of approach there is a balance to be struck. 

Looking at the Bill the provisions are clearly drawn from both existing UK tax 
law and from the Revenue Scotland and Tax Powers Act 2014. There is merit 
in establishing an approach which is consist with the rest of the UK however 
Wales has no control over changes by other legislators and governments. 
The annual finance bills introduced to the UK Parliament provide a vehicle, 
and an opportunity, for the UK government to make changes. As new law is 
made for other parts of the UK then the pursuit of consistency will be 
challenging. Fundamental changes will require a new Bill in Wales. The 
choice between consistency and innovation is finely balanced and a matter 
for future governments. 

 
 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 68



 

Please refer any questions regarding this response to: 
Kay Powell LLM Solicitor / Cyfreithiwr  
Policy Adviser / Ymgynghorydd Polisi  
The Law Society / Cymdeithas y Cyfreithwyr  
Capital Tower / Twr y Brifddinas  
Greyfriars Road / Heol Y Brodyr Llwydion  
Cardiff / Caerdydd  
CF10 3 AG  
T 029 2064 5254 F 029 2022 5944  
email: kay.powell@lawsociety.org.uk 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 70

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	3.1 Llythyr i Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a Busnes y Llywodraeth
	3.2 Nodyn o'r digwyddiad rhanddeiliaid ar y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru) ar 23 Medi 2015
	4 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru: Amcangyfrif o incwm a threuliau ar gyfer 2016-17: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1
	Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

	7 Y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 6
	FIN(4)-21-15 P4 Ymateb Cymdeithas y Cyfrifwyr Ardystiedig Siartredig (ACCA) i'r ymgynghoriad (Saesneg yn unig)
	ACCA - Foundations for a sound tax system simplicity, certainty and stability.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Simplicity 
	3. Certainty
	4. Stability
	5. Conclusion


	Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

	8 Y Bil Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7
	Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil




